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(UHPRICE
Forecasting Model

U-PRICE is a dynamic forecasting model that gives annual forecasts
of uranium price, production, and inventories through 2010. Forecasts
can be driven either from a cost-recovery perspective on new or
existing supplies or from econometric equations. U-PRICE is used
for scenario analysis to understand the impact of uncertainty on
forecast values.

SAIC and The Ux Consulting Co. have developed and jointly support
U-PRICE. SAIC specializes in quantitative analysis, modeling and
computer applications in the nuclear and energy fields. Ux Consulting
along with its affiliate The Uranium Exchange Company specialize
in nuclear fuel consulting, price forecasting, and information services.

We would be pleased to discuss the features and advantages of the
U-PRICE model with you. Please contact Jeff Combs of Ux
Consulting at 770-640-8526 or Russell deCastongrene of SAIC at
423-481-2361.
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U-PRICE is supported by both Science Applications International
Corporation (SAIC) and The Uranium Exchange Company (UxC). SAIC,
a leading company in computer applications and modeling, provides
system and analytic support, while UxC, along with its affiliate The
Uranium Exchange Company, leading uranium market consultants,
provides analytic and data support. Together, we are able to offer
unparalleled support for U-PRICE and its applications.

- Feature 4Descrlptlon :

* M Traiming = - - ‘ Tmmmg on Lhe use and features of U—PRICE

Gl s - can' be prov1dcd on site or at SAIC or UxC

. : ' fﬁces f_ ~ DR o

B Upgrades - ... Both SAIC and Ux are constantly followmg

e R - developments in the uranium market.. When
‘major developments occur, such as the matched
sales concept in the amendment to the Russian
suspension agreement, these are incorporated
in U-PRICE.

B Custom Applications Because U-PRICE is worksheet based, the
model's equations and computer macros are
readily accessible, and U-PRICE can be readily
modified to add new features, including custom
Teports to meet your company's requirements.

B Data Support UxC/Ux maintains a comprehensive database
of uranium supply demand, inventories,
production capacity, production costs, and other
aspects of the uranium market and industry.
This database is available to support U-PRICE
CustoImers.

B User Feedback In response to user requests, new features such
as Quick Change and Interpolated Production
have been added. A Windows 95 version will
be availabie at the beginning of April 1996.

e The Ux
Science A ﬁcati;ns Consuiting
!nternationa?gorporation Company




U-PRICE has a flaxible data requirements in that it wilf run successfully
with the data given to it, whether the data are sparse or detailed. In
this manner, U-PRICE can make use of your detailed data on uranium
projects, including production capacities, costs, and contract
commitments, or can be run with much less detailed data. Similarly,
the output from U-PRICE can be detailed or abbreviated, depending on

the user’'s requireaments.

Feature

. Produccr Databasc

" M Historical Data.

B Froducer Status

B Reports

B Graphs

— e e

e T ]

" /. v | seeea
F /. | T A — £

Science Applications
international Corporation

U PRICE contams a producer d.ambase whlc:h
unllzes the following data on J.ndwldual
uramurn pIOJeCtS. start-up year, shut down

' year, production capacity, contract L
cormmunents, and minimum sel].mg pnce

v
:

U-PRICE contams hlstoncal data, mcludmg

- uranium production, requirements, inventory -
levels, and price. These data are used to
develop the equations in the econometric
section of U-PRICE, as well as to provide a
historical perspective fiom which the user can
view forecasts of price and production.

For each case run, U-PRICE provides a listing
of all projects which are forecast to be in
production and the amount of uranium being
produced on an annual basis. Such information
is useful for utlities who wish to determine
which producers are viable, and for producers
who wish to determine how they rank versus
their competition.

Standard reports for U-PRICE include
projections of the spot and long-term uranium
price, uranium production, uranium
requirements {adjusted for tails assay), and
availability of uranium supplies from HEU.
A separate report is available to show the extent
of U.8 /Russian matching sales for any one
scenario.

In addition to the numerous built-in graphs,
U-PRICE will walk the user through the process
of graph creation. A special menn selection is
provided to track ali graphs that have been
created.

The Ux
Consulting
Company




U-PRICE is programmed on EXCEL for Windows for ease of use and
accessibility. Additionally it contains custom menus and extensive
help files, making its use even more efficient and productive. And,
since U-PRICE is based in EXCEL, it can also be easily modified to run
on an APPLE Macintosh computer.

[ | Menu—Dnven

M Case Management

W Help File

B Documentation

B Quick Change

Science Applications
international Corporation

L] Model Sw'i.;bligeg_'l'rf‘:frnpléte .

Descrlptlon

S

o Custom-de51gned menu a]lows the user to move
‘within a‘spreadsheet or bc:twccn spreadsheets

qu1ck1y and efflcmmly L

5 ;Allows user o 5pecn”-y key parameters ofa run
froma smgle location, including number of

years to be forecast (from 1 to 16), model- .
solution mode, and whether to use opt]mal
tails. o

Allows user to save specific cases along with
the associated set of assumptions to recreate
this case.

U-PRICE contains extensive. "context-
sensitive” help files, which permits the user to
access the exact information to perform the
current task. Further, the help files are cross-
referenced, so the user can easily seek out
additional information on a particular subject.

Full documentation on U-PRICE is provided,
including all equations and macros used in the
model.

Allows the user to quickly change the most
frequently used assumptions and easily perform
sensitivity analysis.

The Ux
Consulting
Company




U-PRICE incorporates all key aspects of the uranium market, allowing
the user to simulate a variety of market conditions, including the impact
of trade restrictions, the introduction of uranium supplies from HEU,

changes in exchange rates and enrichment prices, evolving inventory
policies, the start-up and shut-down of individual mines, recycle, and
changes in reactor requirements, permitting the evaluation of a number
of "what if" scenarios.

Feature = Description

" BB Optimal Tails Assay . . Calculates optimal enrichment tails assay based
o SRR T * onuser-inputted enrichment price and - .
allowable tails assay range and uranivm price
calculated by model. Adjusts uraniurn demand
according to changes in tails assays.

B Uranium Project Scheduling  Allows user to shut down any uranium project
in a specified year and delay or accelerate the
introduction of a new project to determine the
impact on price.

M Highly Enriched Uranium Calculates uranium supplies available based
(HEU) on HEU assay, blendstock assay, calculated
optimal tails assay, HEU conversion capacity
and delivery schedules, and consiraints on sale
of uranivm derived from HEU. User can assess
impact on market by altering introduction rates
of HEU suprplies.

M Trade Restrictions Model simulates all current trade resgictions,
' and elements thereof. including Euratorn quota,

Comrmerce suspension agreements and
amendments. Within the context of the
suspension agreements, the model allows the
user to assess the impact of grandfathered
commitments, enrichment bypass, the price-
tied quota. and matched sales. The model also
forecasts the DOC-determined price on which
the price-tied quotas are based.

M Inventory Drawdown In one mode. the model calculates the
drawdown of inventories and the levels of
inventories desired by utilities. In another
mode, the mode] allows user to adjust inventory
drawdown to determine the impact on price.

B Exchange Rates Model adjusts minimum acceptable selling
prices of individual projects based on assumed
changes in exchange rates.

7 w1 e
. The Ux
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U-PRICE Model Screen — Typical output report showing uranium
production by project name (illustrative).
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U-PRICE Model Screen — Choices for model control
approaches, mode of solution, inventory data source,
calculation of spot price, and units.

]5[12 Pe:cent Pruduchun Dunng
' Price Downturn
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U-PRICE Model Screen — Main menu for U-PRICE showing
choices for data management, model calculation, and output
reporting.
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Welcome to the SAIC/UxC U-PRICE Model, Ver 1.3

4[> ]pih MODEL OVERVIEW (KEVDATA PREVIEW ,( QUICK CHANGE UAII_j_]

Copyright 1995, SAIG/Ux Consulting, All Rights Resenved

Press to learn maore about how to use the model

E Prees

[j Fress to leam more about model worksheets

io read an overview of the model

To view Help fram any Worksheet, Select Help from the Menu above.
To view Helg far any Menu Selection, highlight the Selection of choice and press F1
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U-PRICE Model Screen — On-line help for each of the major
worksheets, with direct links to other help topics available by
clicking on the underlined item. U-PRICE help is context-
sensitive, providing help information on the user’s current
activity.

Contents
Model Files
3| The following worksheets are contained within the model. Click on any of
*| them to obtain further information.
DATA ENTRY MARKET DATA Market Assumptions
and Model Switches
Data
PROJECTS.DBF Uranium Projects Data
DATA ENTRY  URANIUN DEMAND Urantum Demand Data
DATA ENTRY  HISTORICAL DATA Historical Data
CALCULATION URANIUM PROJECTS Projects Calculations
CALCULATION URANIUNM DENAND Demand Calculations
CALCULATION URANIUNM PRICE Price Calculations
CALCULATION URANIUM PRODUCTION Production Schedule
CALCULATION (OPTIMAL TAILS Optimal Tails
Calculations
il ECONOMETRIC  MODEL Econometric Model ki
——
vy AN c Th’e Ux
) e onsulting =
s e Applications =
Intei:iear;?onafg;rpr;raﬁon Company "_‘"’x




U-PRICE Model Screen — Typical worksheet demonstrating the
“go-to” menu which allows the user to move quickly and
directly to other sections of the worksheet. U-PRICE menus are
context-sensitive, maximizing the efficient navigation of the

model by the user.

PRICE Uranium Market Model-

- U PRICE. XLW

LI N

= | File i Ca culate 'graphs Reports Help
= { - Introduction . -, . i =l=l= 3 .y
SRl frdior AT+ (8]0 ElETE) (= [ s ]
- A1) Demand Calculation ... ME
¥ Price/Production Matrix - [ B | ¢ | D | E | F | E;
Price Calculation = {Defeult Case L
ENF Uranium Production
- . 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
T ail Optimal Tails Calculator s Y 030 0,30
T ails Market Assumptions ... Enrichment b0 0.20 020
Enrid__Project Calculation ... + HEU Supplies - b1 0.71 0.71
SWU Price Projection Trade Flestnctluns o 4100 $100
Canversion Price Projection Uranium chmrcmcnts S 56 $6
Natural Uranlum N IR
ENRICHMENT BYPASS . Inventories
_Ecunomlc.o‘Exchange Flates 7 1998 1999
European SWU Capacity (GO0 SWU]  Price, User-specified - 10 12009 12000
Sales to U.S. Utilitizs Model Switches -~~~ © 0 1000 1000
Unsold Capeacity gdu tgu@ - Tole 1000 1000
Unsold Percentage Available to U.S. 50% B0%% 50% 503 RD%
|Unsold Capacity Available to U5 500 500 500 550 500
U.s. svwi Demand (000 SN 10000 0000 10000 10000 10000
I Commitments with USEC 2100 81 UU- 81 UU 81 oo g100 -
i Crrmrnitrnanic witk Friirmmcan Enrichare 1ann . 100a ¥
4141»!»11‘;\DATA ENTRY MARKET DATA,{ DAlA ENTRY DEMANDJ( tALf:u[ﬂj q -]

'Jump to Market Data Enrichment
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PRICE Presentation to PNC

Introduction

Development and Uses of U-PRICE
Analytical Framework

U-PRICE Features

Computer Operation of Model

Model Demonstration

Support for Model

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications International Corporation



PRICE Presentation to PNC

Development and Uses of U-PRICE
Prototype model used in 1992 study for DOE

Model has been updated twice

U-PRICE has been used in various studies

e Analyze disposition of HEU inventories for DOE
e EIS for Saskatchewan projects

e Historical performance of model

®
e Delivery of first model in 1994
°
°

s

The Ux Consufting Company, LLC Science Applications International Corporation



PRICE Presentation to PNC

Analytical Framework

® Requirements input by user and adjusted for
| e Optimal Tails

% e Capacity Factors

® All sources of uranium supply are identified

e Production

e Inventories

e Recycled Material

e CIS Supply/Import Restrictions
e HEU Supply

® Model derives demand for production

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications Infernational Corporation



Analytical Framework (cont.)

o Price/production matrix is calculated based on
project database

e Project database includes for each project

Start-up Year

Shut-down Year

Ramp-up Profile

Reserves

Maximum Production Capability

Minimum Selling Price

Current Firm-price Contract Commitments

e Calculation spot, long-term prices & production

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications international Corporation
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~. U-PRICE Uranium Market Model - U_price_xls
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~_ U-PRICE Uranium Market Model - U_pnce_zls
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PRICE Presentation to PNC

U-PRICE Analytical Features

Simulates trade restrictions

e Euratom

e U.S. Suspension Agreements
Kazakh Price-tied Quota
Uzbek Production-tied
Russian Matching

HEU supplies

Optimal tails assay-enrichment price effects

®
e Inventories
®
e Forecasts production on a project basis

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications International Corporation



e Menu-driven
e Dialogue box

e Case-saving feature
e Flexible

Computer Operation and Features

e Runs on MS-Excel for PC
e Designed to be easy to use

e Context-sensitive help files

o Detailed or aggregate inputs (Quick Change)

e Customized runs

e Custom reports and graphs

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC

Science Applications International Corporation
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Introduction
Quick Changes
B Demand Calculation... »

W Calculate Graphs HBeports Help

Bl o) =ls] sz Kl @l S|sfoe

Price/Production Matriy T B8 | ¢c | b | E | F =

1 Price Calculation st Case Default Case I

2 |EN  Uranium Production 1 ~

3 Qptimal T aiis Calculater 1896 1997 1998 1999 2000

FEBEY Maket Azsumptions .. * |.3U 0.30 0.30 0.30

5 |Ta  Project Calculation... »  HEU Supplies 20 0.20 0.20 0.20
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7 |SwU Price Projection Uranium Requirements PO $100 $100 $100

8 |Conversion Price Projection Natural Uranium 56 $6 $6 $6
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Usanium Market Model Switches

:—D emand Units
& Meatric Tons Uianium
¢ 1000 Lbs Uranium

~Price Calculation
& Fundamental
" Econometric

~Inventary Policy
¥ User Entated inventory Policy
" Econometric Values

~|nitisfizing 'V alues
]$1 1.50 U308 Price [$)
[$100  Swu Price ($)

|1 996 Starting Year for Model

3 ~Model Control

[T UseOptimal Talls @&
.~ Use Enrichment Bypass

- ¥ Use HEU Blending

I~ Use USEC Overfead

[~ Use Russian Matching -
¥ ignote Capacity Factors

¥ Ignore Exchangs Rates

‘ |1 B ‘Years to Calculate

: ]L'I"/. Percent Production During
Prnce Downturn

Cancsl

_Cwes |
Help I

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC
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~» U-PRICE FORECASTING MODEL HELP
File Edt Bookmark QOptions Help

Qontenlsl §earch| Tac- ] Print |

Welcome to the U-Price Forecasting Model

subject:

Model Overview
LData Entry

IModel Operation
Menu Commands
Index of Model Files

Glossary

For more mformation on one of the topics listed below, chick the mouse on the desired

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC

Science Applications International Corporation



< U-PRICE FORECASTING MODEL HELP M[=1E3
fde Edit Bookmark Dptions Help
Qantents] Search | Back l Print ]
Model Files
The following worksheets are contained within the model. Click on any of them to obtam further
mformation.
e DATA ENTRY MAREET DATA Market Assumptions and Model Switches Data
% PROJECTS DEE Uraniurn Projects Data
5 DATA EWNTEY  TRANIUM DEMAND Uranium Demand Data
DATE ENTRY  HISTORICAL DATA Histonical Data
CALCULATION UEANIUM PROJECTS Projects Calculations
CALCULATION TUERANIUM DEMAND Demand Calculations
CALCULATION TUEANIUM PRICE Price Calculations
CALCULATION TURANIUM PRODUCTION  Production Schedule
CATCULATION OPTIMAL TATLS Optimal Tails Calculations
ECONOMETEIC MODEL Econometnc Model
Price Production Matnx Price/Production Matrix
T-PRICE Macros Macro Worksheets
T PRICE LS Main Workbook File
DLL Add-in Funchons Functions provided through the DLL fites.

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications International Corporation
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< U-PRICE FORECASTING MODEL HELP
File Edit Bookmark Qptions Help

(=] E3

The following commands are available from the
Mode! Menu Bar that replaces the standard Excel
Menu Bar duning model operation. These
commands rmay be accessed by etther chcking on
the word, or by holding down the <Alt> key and
pressing the red highlighted letter shown below.

File Commands

Provides a means of temporarily exiting to Excel
{(Halt Model), exiting the model completely (Exit
Model), or saving files.

Jump Commands
These commands provide & quick means of
jumping to other worksheet areas. Jumps mclude:

Supply, Demand, Price, Production, and Market

Qontentsl gearchJ Back | Brint o
Menu Commands

&

=

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC

Ee Edit Bookmark QOptions Help

Qontents] §earch| Back I Print ]

Glossary

Captive Production- Identfies supply to a country that
will not be displaced by CIS supplies.

CIS Supplies- Uranium produced by the Former Soviet
Union that is expected to be priced lower than any
other suppher. Due to the fact that sales are
independent of price, this supply 1s modeled as reducing
demand for Western uranium supplies. Imports of CIS
supplies are regulated on a regional basis, from price
guotas in the United States to percentages of demand m
other parts of the world. See: Trade Eestrictions

Committed Production- Production from a project that
is insensitive to price in that it will be produced
irrespective of the current uranium price.

Science Applications International Corporation




e Upgrade for enhancements in software
« Version 1.3 to be released in May

e Provide updates on market data used by model

R ]

e Maintenance agreement

The Ux Consulting Company, LLC Science Applications International Corporation
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RAPID CHANGE CREATES MAJOR NEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR PROGRESSIVE COMPANIES LEKE SAIC THAT
BRING NEW IDEAS AND TECHNOLOGIES TO THE TABLE. THIS PAST YEAR, WE HELPED CUSTOMERS
BECOME MORE INNOVATIVE, PRODUCTIVE AND TECHNOLOGICALLY ADVANCED. WE HELPED THEM
RESPOND. TO COST-CUTTING PRESURI;S. CHANGING NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL PRIORITIES,

LHANGING MILITARY AND POLITICAL SITUATIONS, AND INCREASING ECONOMIC COMPETITION. = OVER

HAS FUELED OUR GROWTH TO NEARLY 19,000 EMPLOYEES, MORE THAN 475 OFFICES WORLDWIDE,

AND REVENUES APFROACHING $2 BILLION. . » _wim HAS NOT CHANGED: SAIC'S ENTREPRENEURIAL
SPIRIT AND SMALL-COMPANY nmalun mmum Our REPUTATION AS A LEADING TECHNOLO-
GYHRMAHDALEADINGSYSTMIN‘!‘EGRATQR. Tﬂzunmammmonﬂwmwm;
mmmmmmmmmmunmmrmmmmmmmm
mmmes m Acﬂstvsmz aesrsoumons. Amnmmzmm pajvmmﬁ onmnmrﬁcum- o
mexmfmm ounswsrmnrmmowmp mwmemcmmpm |
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Enfutions 23r ﬁw future: At SA!C wa 58 puf duﬁrae tec!-mcai ex;.wﬁf to meel a w;de ran,,, of can"t’:rﬂy C-h:l-‘iQ*.
- g eastemer neede {On the :avar,‘ﬂmﬂ tag s holtani) Dur regearchers dmmir:p amranc;bd .;;‘ia;d! El.ii'vtﬂi‘aﬁcﬂ"
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Superior information technology cives many
companies an advantage ir today's competitive
enviranment. SAIC designs information techno:-
ogy solutions to help its customers stay com-
petitive and poised 1o respond to changes in
their environments, As a result, independent
surveys rank SAIC amaong the top 1T companies
in the world. & SAIC offers a full range of in-
formation technology services, from consulting
1o Systems integration 1o OUISOUrCing services.

Qur expertise includes open systems, client

SAMC handheld 386 PC computers halped crew
moniter boat performance during the America's
Cup races.

server architectures, sophistcaicd netwarks,
and extensive software development.

conNsuLTinG Belore making sweeping
information technology changes. etiective orga-
nizations are taking a close ook at business
processes. The Fiorida Depariment of Labor
recently sought aut SAIC consulting services for
& workflow reengineering study. Our work is
helping FDL plan better electronic document
management in processing workers’ compensa-
tion and dispute resolution cases. A We are

alse breaking new ground with our work in

information protection. privacy and security.

GJZ/ZO ,ch,(//

We developed a business-based information
pratection plan for ane of the world's larges;
insurance comparues. Going beyond ordinary
technical proteciion plans, we analyzed the
company's policics and procedures, eiectronic
environment, nerworks and telecommunica-
tons, and business productivity and require-
ments, hefore recommending cost-effecuve
engineering and business solutions. For one of
the worid's largest brokerage {irms, we pre-

pared an information crisis management plan




designed 1o keep aperations running properly.
even in the face of electronic attack.
SYSTEMS INTEGRATION Srategic
systems integration has been one af SAICs
strengths for nearly 25 vears. Our systems serve
cusiomers in a wice range of industries, includ-
ing health care, oil and gas. wransportation, util-
ities, banking, insurance, communications, and
entertainment. We designed and built the

larges: hospital information system in the

world. We also designed and built the jargest

medical felecommunications system in the
United States. We are the leading integrator of
plant pracess computer systems for the U.S.
nuclear power industry. For the transporiation
industry, we are the leading North American
integrator of automalic equipment identifica-
non technology lor shipment tracking. Finally,
we integrated ane of the largest information
systems in law enforcement—the FBI fingerprint
identification system serving all US. law
enforcement agencies.

OUTSOURCING SERVICES British

Derroleum recognized in 1993 that outsourcing

its information systems would save meney and
allow staff to focus on more important activilies
like 0il exploration. Accordingly, BE Exploranan
chose SAIC as a worldwide partner to accom-
piish this goal. BPX estimates that outsouring
these 1asks hes saved some 207 in operating
costs, allowing the company to be more com-
pentive. 4 In addition to designing and mnte-
grating the largesi health care information sys-
tem in the world, SAIC staff also manage the
computer facilities for the largest providers in

this extensive health care network.




INFORMATION SYSTEMS Whether
in the private sector or government, our health
cere clients share the same challenges: lower-
ing costs while improving the guality of care.
Our success in meeting Lhese needs has made
SAIC one of the tap health care systems integra-
tors in the United States. & Operating in hospi-
tals and clinics worldwide, our systems give
medical stafls fasler, more accurate, and more
complete access 1o critical patient data. They
allow administrators to process patients more
efficiently. Using a new systemn [eature. admin-

istrators can now manage multiple hospizals as

aone facility for patient scheduling and adminis-

Heat Gare

trative tasks. A Cver the last decade, SAIC has
advanced the state of the art in compuicrized
patient records, integrated delivery systems,
oulcomes management Sysiems. enlerprise-
wide telecommunications, open sysiems. and
uperades for legacy systems. 4 On the [ore-
front of new technology, SAIC’s new clinical
workstation toolset will provide easier sharing
of patient and business information far the 71
hospitals and HMOs in the Harris Methodist
Health Services Group in Fort Worth, Texas. Qur
large 1oolkit alse includes applications to
improve worker productivity, rapidly prototype
future functions, and help workers use a mix of
legacy systems and new repository-based sys-

tems. & We continued 10 strengthen our capa-

bilities in commercial health care sysiems with
a key acguisition. Dur new ]DA subsidiary has a
reputation as a forward-loocking partner in
helping commercial health care institutions
plan and implement integrated computer sys-
tems. 4 Also supporting this commercial work,
SAIC developed the largest health care informa-
tion systern in the world. It serves about nine
million DoD beneficiaries and boasts some of
the highest levels of reliability, maintamnability,
and on-line support in the haspital information
system industry. & On our newest Dol health

care contract {awarded shortly after fiscal year



end). we are building commurnty networks link-
ing military medical facilities (using our system)
with civilian providers and VA medical centers.
4 In an impressive experiment in telemedicine,
$AIC helped link physicians aboard a hospita:
ship off the coast of Haiti with major U.5. mili-
iary hospitals. As a result, the ship's doctors
were able 1o give U5, soldiers better medical
treatment.

MEDICAL SCIENCE At the frontiers of
medical science, SAIC conducts and supporig
leading-edee research into cancer and AIDS

causes and ireatments at the National Cancer

Institute’s Fredenick Cancer Research and
Development Center. Shortly after the fiscal
vear ended, SAIC won the contract to provide
scientific resources and services to this major
research center. About 1,300 SaIC scientists and
rechnical staffl support wide-ranging programs,
including i vitro screening of anti-tumor and
anti-AlDS compounds, experimenia: clinical tri-
als. and AIDS vaccine development. & SAIC has
also been a key partner n helping achieve suc-
cesses with the breast cancer research program
mandated by Congress. Our techmcal and
administrative support helps the U5 Army
anerate this program, anc others for infectious

diseases, combat casualty care, medical chemi-

cal defense, and biological defense vaccines.

HUMAN HEALTH SERVICES 3JAIC
supports the U.S. Army in providing counseling
1o military dependems in Europe and Asia.
Using the Army program as a model, & consor-
tivm of Fortune 500 companies reguested simi-
lar services. SAlC's Overseas Assistance
Program supports expatriaies and their [amilies
in more than 14 countries, We recently helped
Practer § Gamblic's empioyees cope with the
earthquake in Kobe. We sent a team of clini-
cians 1o Japan 1o provide critical incident stress
debnefings, counseling, management censulta-

rior. and crisis management services ta P6G

expartriates.
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For mare than a quarter century, SAIC has been
responding to fasi-changing military priorities.
constantly pushing the state of the art
Committed to anticipating—and meeling—our
customers’ changing needs as they arise, SAIC is
a leader in leveraging technology to improve
iorce effectiveness.

CONMMAND AND comMTROL Jur
waork in command and control technology epit-
omizes this ability. We are helping sel new sian-
dards for interoperability, situational aware-
ness, and real-time decision support. Our

achievements will help commanders better

{Left) Owr advanced technology for the Army
Globhal Command and Control System will atlow
gquick respense deployment and tracking of
troops in simulated or actual events. In the
Pentagon |nght}, AGCCS enables the President
and chiefs of statt to control U.5. military
forces worldwade.

manage military operations in rapidly changing

world situations. At the same ume, our technel-

oey will help the Depariment of Defense make
better use ol existing resources and reduce
costs for the [uture. & We stand at the center
of a drive o develop 2 giobal command, con-
trol, communications, computer, and inzelli-
gence (C4) systemn that will directly link and
support combar troops for all U.S. Services. 4
Years ahead of the competition, SAIC used its
own IRED funds to demonstrate the feasibility
of this concept in December 1993, Our success
led the Defense Information Systems Agency 1o
select SAIC to integrate the Global Command

and Control System (GCCS) w support the com-

manders-in-chicl ol the unified commands. In
December 1994. this foresignt again paid off
when SAIC, with prime Lockheed Marun, won
the cantract 10 build the main U8 Army com-
mand and control system, calied the Army
GCCS. A Envisioned as a joint {* svsiem of (¢
systems, GCCS 15 a plobal network of fused
information that will give the joint task force
commander an accurate, real-ume piclure of
the battlespace. Even more important, it will
give commanders the ability to configure forces

horizontally and vertically—a crucial capabiiity




for fighting and winming battles. & The evolu-
tionary integration of diverse C! sysiems inic a
seamiess solution is a significant step torward
in systems integration. At the heart of GECS lies
the common operating enviranment that could
cerve as the basis of all 1l for the Defense
Department inio the next century. 11 provides
both hardware independence and open system
interfaces 1o support the “best” applications
software from each of the Services, including
many applications developed by SANC. GCCS will
also replace the World Wide Military Command

and Control System, based on obsolete and

expensive-to-maintain mainframe computers.
A Our command and control support to field
units offers another example of our responsive-
ness to changing customer needs. Last year, an
SAIC team moved quickly to provide on-site
support [or refugee reliel operations in
Entehbe, Uganda Based in Europe, this team af
5alC enginecrs, analysts and techmicians can
move into the field with U.S. Army soldiers on
short notice 1o support theater command and
conirol. Their work includes architecture devel-
opment, engineering, integration, configuration
management, and networking. A SAIC also pro-

vides development and engineering support to

the intelligence communiry, The recent acquisi-

tion ol the government business units of |deas,
Inc. strengthened our ability 1o provide quick
reaction hardware and sofiware in response o
taday's evolving threats.

ADVANCED SIMULATION A5 ad-
vanced distributed simulation  technology
advances into the next millennium, our global
approach will stress interaperahility ol simula-
tion and live €91 systems under a commen infar-
mation techinology structure. As part of this
plan, SALC teamed with the Advanced Research

Projects Agency (ARPA) and the U.S. Army
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Simulation, Traimng and Instrumenzation
Command to fund research on simulation inter-
aperability. Qur stalf also successfully demaon-
strated Phase 1 of a framework that realisticallv
represents mission, enemy, roops, terrain, and
lime. With a computer representation ol these
components in place, semi-zutomared forces
wili have command-level decision support that
significantly expands current battle iraining
capabilities, 4 In anucipaton of the 1gg7
Synthetic Theater of War (STOW) demonsira-
tion, the U.S MNavy contracted with SAIC o
umprove network protocols used for TCP/IP and
ATM networks. SAIC's challenge: 1o lay the tech-

nical groundwork for the commercial market-

place to deveiop nerworking products for use in

SAIC's taciical operat ‘1“5 simuiator fleit} pro:
vides Japan with Pailri:\t analysis and the capa-
bility to investigate tactical ballistic defense
issues. For advanced o'ptical surveillance, our
Large Area Processing Station (right) manufa\!:-
tures low-light-level image intensifiers. |

STOW'gy. 4 SAIC complered & major architec-

tural design of core simulation software for

ARPA's War Breaker program this year. known
as SIMCORE, this framework handles multiple
War Breaker simulauion, sysiems engineering,
and modeling/analysis applications. & Looking
for a pew dimension in simulation applications,
the Defense Nuciear Agency asked for SalC help
in using advanced simulation as an alternative
o live weapon firings. By combining our exper-
tise in disributed simulation technology and
object-oriented COMPASS middieware, we are
incorporating blast, thermal and radiation
effects into the mission planning process.

INFOEMATION MANAGEMENT
SAIC has been helping many of our military cus-

tomers reengineer themselves into leaner, more

efficient organizations. At the top level, 5AIC s
supporting DoD's renovation of the 52-year-old
Pentagon, one of the largest buiidings in the
world and workplace for nearly 25.000 prople.
Under U.5. Army direction, our staff are creating
arl evelving building-wide "eaterprise nerwark”
of shared communications and computing ser-
vices, We are designing the network to operate
more efficiently than today s disparate systems,
yel require Jess human and fiscal resources to
operate and maintain. A& This ¢flfort benefits
from our extensive experience in client/scrver
technology; distributed processing increased
networking sophistication; the usc of commer-

cia} hardware, software, and standards; as well




as innovative ways 10 share new or existing ser-
vices or technotogy. &4 Our Pentagon work is
pari of a major hve-year, {ollow-on contract
awarded last vear by the U.5. Army Inlormation
Systems Engineering Command, During our pre-
vious {ive-year contract, SAIC compieled more
than 1,000 projects 1o upgrade information
technology and telecommunications systems
{or various Army cominands.

EXTENDING LIFE GYGLES Jur con-
tributions improve capabilities and extend life
cycies for a wide variety of systems. Under a
major follow-on ceniract, we continued heiping
the Sacramento Air Logistics Center wnH relia-

bility and mainiainability upgrades to a wide

range of U.5. Air Force weapon systems and

support equpment. Gur successiul technology
insertion eflorts have ranged in complexity
from. boargd level redesigns 1o full replacements,
from. developing new automated software tools
1o demonstrating technologies. & SAK and the
U.S. Army are working together 1o achieve bet-
ter quality and more cost-effective mainte-
nance and upgrades Tor hielded missile sysiems
and the wide range ol legacy software they
encompass. We recently helped the Sofiware
Engineering Directorate at U.5. Army Missile
Command (MICOM) uperade the software skills
of itz own s:aff while fulilling our own contract
requirements. With our help, MICOM became
the Army's [irst life cycle software organization
to achieve a Sefiware Engineering [nstitute

Level Il gualification.
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POLICY ANALYSIS The proliferation of
weapons of mass destruction, the rise of re-
gional tensions, and the specter of lunger range
ballistic m:ssiles in the hands of leaders
unfriendly to the United States or its allies pose
threars 1o clobal security and stability. SAIC has
been at the lorefront of planning with our
Cooperative Threat Reduction program, arms
control initiatives, and counterproliferation
srratevy. Qur urigue combination of interna-
tional security expertise, rechnicat undersiand-
ing of system performance, and modelng and
simulation capability has allowed SAJC to antie-
ipate client needs and structure & comprehen-

sive research program 1o address the issues.
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MILITARY TECHRNOLOGY SAIC con-
tributes advancec technologies to help devel-
pping rilitary systems meet the challenges of &
rapidly changing world order. As U5 military
policy evolved away from emphasis on slrategic
nuclear weapans, SAIC refocused its develop-
ment capabilities on high-technology 1actical
conveniional weapons. Our contribution to the
1i.S. Mavy/Defense Nuclear Agency Electro-
Thermal Chemical Gun illustrates this new
focus. We applied our capabilities in combus-
ton dynamics to develop a new electrically
augmented propellent that greatly extends
the gun's maximum range. Using advanced
fluid dvnamics and high-strength composites,

we also developed a long-range, precision

projeciile that signilicantly increases mission
effectiveness.

MILITARY PRODUCTS SAIC computer
workstations serve on the frontlines for many
military initiatives. Under a major contract
awarded shorty after fisca) year end, SAIC will
help devciop the fourth generation of U5, Navy
taclical workstations to support the fleet and
operating forces. The TAC-4 program will sartis-
fy the requirements of sysiems commands,
composite warfare/battle group commanders,
and command centers for rugeedized computer
equipment with local area networking, multi-
level security, and data encrypiior. 4 SAlC
technology helped the U.S. Army take the first
steps in providing digitized information across
the battlefield. During Exercise Desert Hammer

V], our poriable workstations, tactical commu-

nications interfaces, and communications soit-
ware increased real-lime situational awareness
throughout the chain of command. All were
developed under our Lightweight Computer
Unit (LCU) contract. This year SAIC will deliver
its 10, 0001h LCU 10 the U.S. Army. As the Army's
first rugged partable computer supporting C°
mssion planning systems, LCUs were success-
fully deployed in Desert Storm and Cperation
Uphold Democracy. & SAIC followed this sue-
cess by winning the Army’s first batilefield digi-
tization procurement supparting mission pro-
gram (1] systems, the Force—XX1 Appliqué con-
tract. Qur technology will support the Army's
goal of digitizing a brivade in 1996 and & division

1 1997

A satellite paylond equipped with SAIC™s
miniature sensor technology will aid the U.S.
Air Foree in obtaining data needed to detect
missile launch signatures.
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A new SAIC sysiem will glv&f"%!g
local law enforcement aogecie

M pecess 1o criminal hismp

law enforcement agencies are discovering the
dramartic impact information technalogy can
have on fightung crime. SAlCs commatmeni o
law enforcement began w years ago when the
FRI seiected Satl o mtegraie ihe first automai-
ed fingerprint wlentiticarion system. SAKC tech-
nclogies suck as imaging and videg, records &rg
workdlow managemen:, and network irteera-
tion make ws 2 powerful ally for law enforce-
ment agencies Thia vear the FBI chose SAIC o
build the national criminal fvstory svsiem.

called the interstale ldentilicarion index. SalC

wili migrate the old manframe-based system ic
a moder clieni-server archiecture, . For the

Geare,a Depariment of Corrections, SAIC s de-

jenariment seiecied SaiC o integrate a distrib-

uted booking system that will atlow the city w
redeniov o oflicers Irom office duties 1o 1he
feic For courts. SALCs widicial video tetecen-
teraroing svslems ehnunaie (e risk and cost of

rransporting punares 1o and from jeils during

ZIEMMERT and probalion arocesses
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Good service means not only delivering prod-
ucts and services on time and within budget,
but also listening and acting on our customers’
concerns. This attitude has helped us grow to
aver 2,500 environmental professionals and
made $AIC one of the largest environmental
consulting firms in the 1.5

POLLUTION PREVENTION Recog-
nizing the importance of technology transfer in
a poliution prevention sirategy, SAIC helped the
EPA  develop the Poliution Prevention
Information Exchange System. An on-line infor-
mation service, PIES provides z4-hour, free

access ta multimedia technical and program

information on pollution prevention alterna-

J2OLTOrUertt

tives. & While operating PIES, SAIC staff dis-
covered numerous efforts by government and
private entities to create data bases on pollu-
tion prevention associared with solvents. SAIC
led a muitiagency effort 1o combine the daia
bases into one comprehensive, user-friendly
dara base linked 1o PIES. This data base helps
federal agencics and industry meet mandaies
prohibiting the use of specified toxic chemicals
and ozone-depleting subsiances. A Environ-
mensal protection also means the development

and use of environmentally appropriate tech-

nologies to replace those that generate large

volumes of hazardous waste. Under contract
with the Advanced Research Projects Agency,
SAIC is developing an environmentally safe
coating for wear and corrosion. This will
replace coatings based on polymers, which pro-
duce volatile organic compounds and can be
found on fighter arcraft, automobiles, electron-
ics, and optical systems.

SITE RESTORATION / CLEANUP
To further expand our environmental capabili-
ties, SAIC acquired R.E. Wright Associates, Inc.,
at year's end. An established remediation man-
agement contractor, R.E. Wright has more than
20 years of experience in environmental cleanup

and compliance.




TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT
Identifying a technology that will successfully
treat a hazardous waste can significantly reduce
the time and cost of solving a specific environ-
mental problem. SAIC has assessed the perfor-
mance and economic feasibility of more than
300 technologies that treat different types of
hazardous waste. We are currently evaluating
biological processes that treat cyanide from
abandoned mining sites and herbicides from
crop dusting. For EPA's Superfund Innovative

Technology Evaluation (SITE) Program, SAIC

evaluated a bioremediation process on TNT-

contarninated soil at an abandoned munitions
facility. Many old explosives plants and DoD
facilities have high levels af TNT contamination.
We confirmed that this technology could reduce
TNT levels by more than os%—a significant
effect on a prevalent problem.

RISK AssSESSMENT (omparative risk
assessments have proven invaluable in setring
cleanup priorities. SAIC's innovative risk assess-
ment techniques saved the DOE literally mil-

lions of dollars in cleanup costs at the Y-1z Plant

Foi

in Oak Ridee, Tennessee. As part of SAIC's reme-
dial investigation and feasibility study, we con-
ducted a baseline assessment to evaluate the
risk of adverse health effects in humans and
ecosystems. The results were key in selecting
remedial alternatives and deriving cleanup
goals that were technically [easible, cost effec-
tive and sale.

MmarINE ScCIENCES Characterizing
hazardous waste in the sea floor presents its
own set of challenges. Until now, traditional
methods of chemicat analysis meant several

days in the lab and $600 to $1,000 per sediment

SAIC supports the decontamination and decom-
missioning of defense plants and military faciii-
ties. At this large aesrospace facility, our environ-
mental scientists take groundwater samples at
the site of a chlorinated solvent velease.
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sample SAIC's new REMOTS® specirometer can
identify hazardous hot spots in less than a
Minulc—nN0 More unnecessary sediment sam-
pling or waiting an lab resuits. This pioneering
technology uses ulmravicler imaging 10 rapidly
screen prospective dredge sites, montor dis-
posal and il areas, and evaluate oiled sedi-
ments. A valuable tool that combines sedunent
profile videography and compuier image analy-
sis. the new spectrometer can operate at depths

up tQ 100 MEeters.

Ang @uaLiry  Inresponse to one of the
natior's most comprehensive environmental
laws—the 1990 Clean Air Aci—SALC staff design
innovative systems for tracking air-relaied data
and emission invenreries of toxic air polluiants
We then recommend technologies and proce-
dures to control air pollution ermssion.

BASE CLOSURE AMND REUSE |0
the wake of shrinking defense budeets, many
military bases and defense contractors have

been forced 1o close their doors. Our broad-

based expertise supports the demolition and

ducted a broad investication 6 help our cus-
tomer close qul ourstanding environmental
issues. SAIC has also helped design and imple-
ment reuse plans for scores of Dol and local
government customers.

INFORMATION MANAGEMEMT Last
year. SAIC helped the EPA integrate a variety of
legacy systems into one uniform multimedia
system that simultaneously manages air, water
and hazardous waste data. The EPA presented
this system 1o President Clinton as one of the

agency's key achievements for 1994.

Nz decommissioning of defense plants and base

reuse. For a major defense contracior, we con-

|
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5ALS stafl evaluate subsur{ace soifs for corta-
mination at the Annision Army D.e'pot in -
Alabmmna. This wark witt halp SAIC perform an
intearated environmental assessment and
avaluation of remedial alternatives.



Responding to customer needs for accurate
global information, SAlC's geospatal business
increased dramatically in 094 Much of this
business success comes from applying existing
technology in new ways. Far the Narienal
Oceanic and Atmaospheric Administration, SAIC
successiully transferred technology used in the
Defense Mapping Agency o create dicital map
displays for the Nauonal Wearther Service. This
large-scale, distribuled system will present
weather patterns with greater accuracy. For the
U.5. Geological Survey, SAIC used DoD mapping
technaology to create the nex: generation of

topoyraphic maps. SAIC helped assess how

Developed by our General Sciences
Corparation subsidiary, this interactive 3-D
visualization tool helps evaluate ocean biolegy
for scientific research and fishing industries.

the federal sovernment could potentially use
remote sensing imagery. including magery
from commercial and international sources.
Our stafl is working with civil and defense agen-
cies to identify cost-effective imagery sclutions
[or mapping land use planning. and environ-
mental problems. To understand giobal
chmatic changes, SAIC's subsidiary, General
Sciences Corporatian. supports NASA's Mission
to Planer Earth. Using specialized visiple and
infrared sensors, microwave imaging, and
radar technology. GSC researches aceanic,

atmospheric, and land processes observed from

ground and space platiorms.

e

e
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Deregulation of the utilty industry cantinues to
influence the marketplace with tighter budgets
and increased scrutiny on project justification,
SAIC's ability to anticipate the needs of our cus-
tomers and create cosi-elfective, workable
solutions that address those needs has earned
us a reputation as a trusted pariner to the utili-
ty industry for more than z2 years. We have
demonstrated a proactive approach that helps
meet our customers’ evolving requirements.

PLANT INFORMATION SVYSTEMS
When our utility customers replace or upgrade
plant monitoring systems, SAICs experienced

praject teams can develop complete solutions

rerqy

that meet their reguirements now and mto the
future. SAIC focuses on maximum performance
and expandatulity while minimizing risk and
system downtime. This year Duke Power
Company awarded SAIC one of the largest con-
tracts 1o date 10 replace plant process compul-
ers in the nuclear utility industry. Pennsylvania
Power & Light also chese SAIC to replace exisi-
ing process moniroring compuler systems at its
Susquehanna plant. A& SAIC is already working
on the next generation of plant sysiems by
moving our core producls 1o a cohesive, yer
modular, archirecture based on the Windows
NT™ operating system. This move will create a

more synergistic approach for sharing plan

data across our plant monitaring, security, and

supervisary control and data acquisition sys-

tems. SAIC also designed QSD Performa, the

software solution that helps utilities access
numerous multilanguage data bases 10 collect,
analyze and report mainienance data. & Qur
nuciear energy experniise is helping upgrade
power plant systems in ELastern Europe and
Russia. Last year, we installed a real-time
risk management system for the Dukovany
Plant in the Czech Republic.

PLANT saFeTy SAIC s committed 1o

helping make process industries safer and more

efficient. This work has made SAIC a recognized




leader i process hazards analysis and the
atrmasoheric dispersion modeling of hazardous
chemicals. Process managers rely on SAIC sale-
ty experts to help idemify deficiencies in physi-
cal plant and management systems. A new SAIC
system helps plants address OSHA regulations
anc EPA's proposed Risk Management Plan. This
flexibie sofrware solution can be customizec 10
various plant-specific management programs
across the process industries. & In a joint pro-
ject with a U.S. nuclear utility, SAIC is develop-

ing the next peneration of training simulators

using safety analysis codes in real time. These

simulators will greatly enhance operator train-
ing and interactive safety analysis review.

ENERGY EFEICIENCY SAIC wen a
major follow-on contract thus year with the
Pittsburch Energy Technaology Center. one of
DOE's lossil energy rescarch laboratories. Qur
information systems and engineering services
will augment PETC's research into coal liguefac-
tion and combustion, magnetohydrodynamics,
and environmentai control technology. A S4IC
has identified the benefits of using neural net-
works and expert sysiems 10 Ooptimize energy
usage. Cur nevral net system installed at San
Diego Gas & Electric's Encina Pawer Plant com-
pares actual plant operation to & plant mode]

and alerts the plant operaior to inefficiencies

SAIC provides extensive technical and manage-
ment support {left) to characterize a potential
undetground repository for nuclear waste. Soon
solar energy will be generating electricity at
electric ulilities across the U5, thanks to
SAIC's innovative solar concentrators (right). /

[
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and potential subsystem problems, SAIC has
also developed a PC-based software package
that operates on 1op of a building’s energy man-
agement system to control thermal loads and
load leveling, Another software ool irom SAIC,
DTECT, will help gas and electric utilines betrer
detect theft or meter malfuriction.
PRIVATIZATION / REUSE Over the
past two vears, SAIC stalff have assisted the
United States Enrichment Corporation in pro-
moting privatization and energy reuse initia-
tives. Our expertise helps agencies smooth the
transition [rom governmeni o free market

operations.
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Capping a banner year in transportation pro-
jects, SAIC consolidated most of its transporta-
tion business inic a new sector. This move
reflects bath our strong commitment 1o and the
substantial growth in this area.

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION (Uur
transportation clients, particularly trucking and
railroad compames, face increasing competitive
pressure 1o improve their service reliability and
cut costs. In response, we are designing and
developing a shipment management sysiem 1o
help one of the largest U.S, railroads beteer
manage shipments for its customers, The sys-
tem will help the railroad be more accurate and

Tesponsive 10 its customers with timely infor-

/"(l/ld’/JO/‘f(Zf(.OIZ/

mation about the scheduling, delivery and
invoicing of their snipments. The system uses
information provided by automatic equipment
identification (AED} technology and weigh-in-
motian scales to manage railroad cars and ship-
ments more efficiently. We began developing
this sysiem shortly after fiscal year end. = Our
Syntonic subsidiary now stands as the leading
provider of AE!l systems on the horth American
continent. Syntonic staff have installed the vast
majority of rail reader sites in North America.
Qur AEl sysiems integrate equipmern tags on

containers and vehicles with antennas, radio

frequency readers, and powerful software, 2
Expanding into other markets, such as inter-
modal vard management and ports, Synitonic
recently insialied AEl systems for the in‘ou:
gates at twa major Union Pacific intermodal
yards. Compared to our high-power systems,
built for trains moving up 1 8e mph, our new
low-speed systems for intermodal yards are
easier 1o insiall and more affordable. A
Syntoruc aiso instailed several major automo-
bile toll sysiems, and began new projects such
as the 34-iane system for Dulles Greenway in
Northern Virginia. These automated systems

generaie revenues to pay for roads, bridges

and tunnels, and they speed the flow of ralfic.




A A leader in Intelligent Transporiation 5ys-
tems, our JHK subsidiary offers the most experi-
ence of any Narth American firm in several
major iTS areas. [HK's latest projects include ITS
operational tests for the Genesis system
{Minnesota Department of Transportatian), and
the Seattle Wide-area information For
Travelers or SWIFT system (Washington Staie
DOTS. A Building an this TS experience, JHK is
stretching the state ol practice in congestion
management. This wark encompasses rans-
portation planning, traffic operations, multi-

modal strategy development, interagcncy coar-

dination, and air quality. Since starting this

work in 1960, JHK has heiped more than 2g

states and 40 metropolitan arcas. JHK alsa
directed rhe bellwether Los Angeles Smart
Corridor project, which served as & major oo
in handiing congestion caused by the coliapse
of freeway sections in the Los Angeles/Narth-
ndge earthquake in 1G4

AviaTion (vil aviation agencies also see
the need for more efficient operation in the face
of increasing demand. Committed 1o offering its
customers total transportation sotutions, SAIC
acquired Systems Control Technology, a firm
that develops and modernizes civil aviation and

national airspace systems. Serving the Federal

27

Aviation Administration since 1672, our new
stafl began a major FAA project 1o provide
SYSTOms engineering SUppoTt on navigation and
landing systems. 4 In addition, SAIC won a
contract i integrate critical acronautical infor-
mation from a wide variety of Kanona! Airspace
System resources inio a single system. This new
syster will help the FAA expedite air traffic flow
while helping maintain its exemplary safery
record. & Building on our wark for the new
Denver Inernational Airport, SAIC developed
the concept for an integrated airport ground-
side operaung system, linking major airport
tnformation systems @ a comman technology
core and supporting more effective real-time

management of airport operations.

ISA.IC's automatic equipment identification {AED)
systems send critical datn on the location of
uehicies and containers to railroads. intermoda
yards. and ports. BAIC is the leatling provider,
of AEl systems in Norih America.
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SAIC's reputation for high-quality perfermance
has been achieved through the creativity,
expertise and experience of its people. The
company attracts, motivates and retains recog-
nizec technical leaders and encourages them 1o
builc businesses withir: the company. SAIC sup-
ports these technical leaders with weams of peo-
ple possessing ourstanding skills in the techm-
cal, marketing, management, and administra-
tive areas. A We believe this concept of staffing
for excellence and teamwork pravides the best
value to our customers. [t also allows us more
fexibility in meeting changing customer needs.
Ta this end, SAIC fosters an environment that
encourages employees to pursue chailenging
work, to grow professionally, and to reap the

rewards of ownership in a linancially successiul

H
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and growing company. & At the heart of this
successful, entrepreneurial culture lies our sys-
tem of empioyee ownership. A key factor in
SAIC's success, emplovee ownership provides
the incentives for gutstanding performance. It
also allows the company 1o make the best deci-
sons for its future, free from the influence of
outside investors motivated solely by short-
term financial interests. 4 Our ownership
structure is at the leading edge of an interna-
ticnal employee-ownership movement. Com-
panies as far away as the former Soviet Union
have used SAIC as a model for their own
employee-ownership struclures.

sac stTook  SAlCS stock system has
been based on one simple concept: the idea
that those who contribute 1o the company

should own ir. To encouraze cmployees to

accept the responsibility and rewards ol owner-

J
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ship, the company has estabiished several stock
acquisitior. methods that are available 1o all
employees. Our employees purchase stock
directly or acquire stock through bonuses and
stock options as recognition for their achieve-
ments. Employees also recetve and buyv shares
through SAIC retirement plans. Our employees
and their families own abow 8% of our stock
either directly or through SAIC reurement
plans. a SAlC stock does not trade on any
national exchange. The company's Board of
Directors deiermines the siock price with the
assistance of an independent appraiser. In
establishing the price, the Board uses a formula
which takes into account net income, stock-
holders’ equity, number of shares outstanding,

and a market factor that reflects relevant out-




OCCUFRATIONAL CATEGORY

YEARS QOF EXPERIENCE

Technical Professional 76% More than 10 years 69% Ph.D.
Managerial 13% 5-10 years 21% M.5.
Administrative Professional  11% Less than § years 10% B.5.

side securities market conditions. The price for
SAIC Class A Common Stock was $15.72 per share
on January 3t, 1gg5 an increase of 10.8% from
$14.1g per share on January 31, 94 Bull Inc., a
subsidiary of SAIC, conducts imternal market
trades four times a year, which provide Jimited
liquidity. In fiscal year 1995, Bull, Inc. traded
over 1.4 million shares worth over $21 million.

EMPLOVEE BENMEFITS SAIC suﬁports
its employees with a variety of benefit choices
designed 1o suit their needs and the needs of
their families. Eligible employees may choose

berween SAIC self-insured medical plans and

health maintenance organizations at mast lpca-

*Degree holders represent 77% of the staff

tions. The company also offers eligible employ-
ees programs for dental insurance, life insur-
ance. disability coverage, comprehensive leave,
holidays, tuition reimbursement, and accident
and business trave! insurance, In fiscal vear
1995, SAIC contribused more than $183 million
to these benefit plans.

FEFIREMENT PLANS A variery of SAIC
plans help employees finance their retirement.
Eligible employees can rake advantage of our
Profit Sharing Retirement Plan, Employee Stock

ownership Plan, and 4oi(k) Plan with a compa-

ACADEMIC DEGREE LEVEL

ACADEMIC DEGREE DISCGIPLINE

10% Sciences 43%
36% Engineering 26%
54% Business/Economics/Law 17 %

Humanities/Social Sclences 14%

ny matching contribution {called CODA}.
Together these plans achieved an average annu-
al return for 1go4 of just over 6% while their
overall assets grew nearly 14% 10 §761 million.
During the year, the company coniributed
about $49 million to these plans. 4 Employees
invest their retirement assets in SAIC stock and
in mutual funds provided by the Vanguard
Group of Investment Companies. The funds
offer a choice of investment vehicles and
provide individual control over investment
alternarives. As of December 31, 1994, the retire-
ment plans held approximately 47% of the toial

cutstanding shares of 3AlC comman stock
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

' Year ended January 31
1985 . 1994 1993
REVEMUES . . . .. ... ........... e e, $1,921,880 $1,670,862 $1.504,112
% .. Costsand eenses. - - - ‘ S ' oo * .
3 "Cost of TeVBNUES . . ., itL L DU U e 1,682,623 1477,701 " 1,327,992
'Sellirig,-genera! and administrative eXpeMISES . . . ... 146,053 120,387 113,174
Interest expense . .. ... .. .. e . 3468 2966 2,841
) 1,842,174 - 1,601,054 1,444 007
Income before income taxes L ... .. T e 79,706 69,828 60,105°
Provision for income taxes . ... ... ... A e . 30,654 28,328 - . 22,030
Netincome .. ..-.... > ......... e SRR woo.. S 40082 § 41500 $ 38075
Eamnings per share . ... .. .. e AP T ) R $ . 83 -3 83
- Average number of shares uutsianding[ including‘ common stock . . - _
equivalents ... .. L e F T 49264 47,429 ' 46,179
\ .

S EE ACCOMPAWYING HO'TE 8 T Q CCNSULI_J-JATED.FIN“,ANCIAL ST‘ATEHR'NTS_.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

-

ASSETS

- Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
" Receivables
inveniories
Prepaid expenses
Deferred income taxes

Total cuarent asseis
Property and equipment
Land and buildings
Intangible assets
Other assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liapilides
Accrued payroll and empioyee benef I5]

income taxes payable
Notes payabie and current portion of Iong—term' fiabilities

Total current liabilities . _
Long-term BADIRES « ottt e e e e e e e e

Stockholders' equity, per accompanying statement: -

5

Class A common stock, $.01 par value
(Class 8 common-stock, $.0% par value
Additional paid-in_capital
.Retained eamings
Toial stockhalders' equity
Commitments and contingencies {Note ¥

E

E

\

ACCONMNPANYING

.

o

NOTES

T o

CONSOLIDATED

FIN

January 31
1995 1994
fin thousands)
$ 28,203 $ 53,556
421,750 356,836
25,356 14,764
13,647 10,354
20,536 22,083
509,532 457 593
57,715 50,581 .
88,997 _ 69,161
56,214 17,485
an,126 16,755
$752,584 $611,575
$191,429 $133,433
124,745 106,548
18,400 9889
C 1,143
336,065 251,013
28,955 25,080
452 443
. 17 19
198,052 172,713
188,043 162,327
387,564 335,502
$752,584 $611,575
ANCIAL STATEMWENTS.

~
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLD_E.F.lS’ EQUITY

Common Stock

Class A Class 8 . .
100,000,000 shares 5,000,000 shares Additionai:
authorized authorized paid-in Retained
Shares Amount Shares . Amount capital gamings
Balance at January 31, 1982 .. ... ... SN 41,501 $415. 412 $21 $110,238  $124513
I5Suances of COMMON SEOCK . <« v v e et can 3,31 33 : 24,962 )
Repurchases of common stock. © . .. .. 0. .. e {2,003) (21} {40 ) (6,055) (19,600)
income tax benefit from emplayee stock transactions . . . . . ‘ ‘ N 2,468
Net income . . .. .. e e s ) 38,075
Balance at January 31, 1883, . ... ... DU P 427119 - 427 72 19 136,613 . 142,988
Issuances of cOmMON SIoEK + . v oo v v e 3922 39 40,396 ‘
ﬂepurchages of com_fnon stock ... ... ..o - (2,326) - 23 & {7,873) (22,161)
Income tax bengfit fom erhployee stock transactians . . . . . . ' - 3777
Net income . . ..~ ... .. e - 41,500
Balance at Jarivary 31, 1994, .. .. ... ...l 44315 . 443 B4 19 172,713 162,327
Issuances of common stock ... .. ... ... R 2,994 30 ‘ . 30,138
Repurchases of common stock . . .. .. ... e (2,066) 21} @ 4] (8,356) (22,336)
Income tax bensfit from employee stock fransactions . © . . . .. ) - 3,557
Net income . . . .. . IR [ , 49,052
$452 - 343 $17 $198,052

Baldnce at January 31,1995 .. .. ... ... e 45,243

m

E E ACCOMPANYING :NO‘I‘ES-TO‘CONSDLIDP-TED

TINANCILAL

$189,043

STATEMENTS .
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$ 25532 - § 47307
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) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended January 31 .
1995 - 1994 1993
- (in thousands)
" Cash fiows from operating activities: ) L 7
NBL IEOME . e et et e e e $ 49,052 $ 41,500 $.38,075
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash prowded by operating activities: T
Depreciation and amertization . ... ... ... ... . ..... e 21,138 VARV 21,815
Non-cash comipehsation ... .. .. . e e e e 9,898 8.831 7,830
Loss on disposal of property and equipment . .. . . . . e 1,583 708 1,397
Loss on disposal of land and building .. .. .. ... . L. e 253
Increase {decrease) in cash, excluding effects of acquisitions, resulting from
changes in; .
BECEIVADIES . . o v oo e (a2623) (10,438) {25,274)
Inventories .. . . S e L. (4,477 1,262 452
Prepaid BXpeNSES . . v v ot e e . (2,129) {1,148) 268
Progress PaYMBAIS . . . v v vt v e e e 11,443 (2.243) (16,951)
Deferred iNCOME AXBS . . .. o\ v v ovit it w 1547 (6.584) - 6,436)
Cther assets . . ........... " e i S (8,280} 740) (1,922)
~ Accounts pavabie and accrued liabilies . . .. ... .. e . M7 16,392 32,640
Accrued payrol! and emplayee benefits . .. ... ... P N 16,538 18,852 14977
Income taxas pavable . . . e 12,077 ) a7
i ‘ ' 117,101 85539 76,141
Cash flows from investing activities: . o : i ' \ )
Expenditures for property and equipment . . . ... ... .. LTl s (20,188) (18,420) (17,791)
‘Expenditures for land and buildings ... ... . . F (15,437) Q.01 {2,093
Acquisitions of certain business assels, net of cash deguired . . ... 0. L C (71,109 (14,161} (17,514
Procesds from disposal of properiy and equipment . .. ... L L - 297 - 566 781
Purchase of debt securities held fo maturity . .. .. ... ... .. R R {13,913) - (8,187}
. " {120,350) a7.214) (36,617)
Cash flows from financing activities: B . :
Net repayments under revolving cradit agreements . . ... e (17,200)
Decrease in notes payable and long-term IlBIJIlIIaeS ...................... : (8,310) {3.452) - (4,725)
Sales of cOMMON StOCK . . . . o o e e 17,421 32,651 23,509 -
Repurchases of common stock .. ... .. ... .. D [ - {30,715) (30,057) {25,678)
. ' ' (22,104) (858) 124,095)
{Decrease) increase in cash and gash equivalents . ... .. .. ... e L (25,353} 37,567 - 15,428 .
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . .. ... ... ... ST ET P, ! 53,556 . 15,589 560
Cash and cash equivalentsat end of year . . .. . .. e $ 28203 — "$ 53,556 $15,989
' Supplémental sthedute of noncash investing-and 'ﬁnancing activities:
Issuanca of common stock for acquisitions of certain business assets .. ..., .. ... $ 5282
Liabilities -assumed in acquisifions of certain business assets . .. ... PRI 3 5,881

FINANCIAL

.STBTEMENTS.'
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note A — Jwmamar, ‘_/ 9‘:_11 pgfrcant {ecotutin 2g Policies.

Consaelidation

The censolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts: of Science Applications International Corparation and its subsidiaries. Al
significant intercomparny transactions and accwnts have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in affiliates and cnrporate joint ventures {aned twenty to
frrty percent are accoumed for. under the equity method Dther investments are generally camad ar cost.

Gontract revenues : ' -

- -The majar portion of the Company’s revenues results from contract services performed for the United States Government or from subconitracts with other
contractors engaged in work for the United States Government under a varisly of contracts, some of which'provide for reimbursement of cost pius fees and others
~which are fixed-price or time-and-materials type contracts. Generally, revenués and fees on contracts are recognized as services are performed, using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting; primarily based on contract costs incurred to date cornpared with total estlmaied costs at completion. Revenues
fram the-sale of manufactured nrogucts are recorded when the products are shipped.

The Company provides for anticipated losses on contracts by & charge to income during the period in which the losses are frsi identified- Unbilled receivables
are-stated at estimated realizable value. Contract costs including indirect costs, are subject to audit and adjustment by negotlahons between the Company and
gnvemment representatives. The majority of the Company’s indirect contract costs have baen agreed upon through 1891 and substantilly all of the Company's
indirect contract costs have heen agreed upon through 1980. Contract revenues have been .recerded in amounts that are expected i0 be realized upon fing!
settierent.

" Cash and cash equivalents o

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investmerts uurchased with ai original matumy of three menths or less. Of the $28, 203 ang tota! cash and cash
equivalents at January 31 1995, $24 382,000 was invested in commercial paper. The camying amounts approximate falr value due to the shor maturtyof 4 these

) mstruments

Inventuries
Inventories are valed at the Iower of cost or markeI Cost is determingd using the moving average and first-in, first-out methnds

Buildings, property and equipment

Depreciation and amortization of huildings and related imnprovements are nrovided using the straignt-line method over estimated useful Iwes of thirty to forty
years and ten ygars, respectively. Denrematlon and amortization of pmperty and equipmen{ are provided over the estimated Lseful fves of the assets, primarily
using & declining-balance method, The useful lives are three to ten vears for eqmpmem and the shorter ¢f the useful lives or the terms of the leases for ieasehold -
improvements. - :

Additions to property and equipment togetner with major renewals and be*termems are capltallzad Maintenaice, repairs and' minor renewals and
betterments are charged to expense. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated deprematlon or amortization”are removed
from the. accounts and ary resurtmg gain or Iuss i§ racognized. : - .-

Debt"securities .

Effective February 1, 1994, the Company adoptec Statement of Flnanual Agcounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 115, *Accounting for Certam Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities” prospectively. Adoption of SFAS No. 115 dig nat have an efiegt on.the Company's fi nancial pasition or results of operations in 1995.
Long-térm - debt securilies are includéd in other assets and consist of long-term municipal honds which have been recorded at-amortized cost and classified as
*held-to-maturity.” As of Jantary 31, 1995, debt securities of $20, 100,000 had a fair value of $19,488,000 maturing Detween 1996 and 1998, G[OSS unreallzed
losses amnunted to $612,000. . . _ 7 -

Intanglble assets’

Intangible assets conStst pnmamy ot qoocwil. Goodwill represents-the excess of the purchase cost over the fair valug of net assets acquired in an acqwsmon and |s‘
amortized by a straiattt ine method generally over five to ter vears. Amortization of intangible assets amounted 1o $8,257,00D, $3,007,000 and $7,859, 000 in 1995, 1994
and 1993, respecnvety Amumulated amertization was $15,957,000° amd 53,730, OOO at January 31, 1995 and 1994, respechvely\

Income taxes ) ) . ] .

Income taxes are provided uiifizing the liability method under SFAS No. 109. The ahility method requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabifities
for the expected fiture tax consequences of femparary differences between the camying amounts and tax bases. of assets-and liabilities. Additionally, under-the
habl ity method, changes in tax rates and laws will be reflected in income i the period such changes are enacted.

i:ommon stock and earnings per share

Class A znd Class B ccmmon stock are coilectlvely referred 1o as common stock in the ‘Notes to Consoildated Finaricial Statements onless otnerwise
indicated.

Computahons of earnings per share are based on the welghted average number of shares of comman stock outstanding, mcreased by the effect of ditutive
optians using the modified treasury stock method. Fully diluted eamings per shiare was substantially the same as primary earnings per share in 1995 1994 and
1993.
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. Concentration of credit risk
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A general public market for the Corhpanys cammon stock daes not exist. Periodic determinations of thé fair market value of the cormon stock are made by

- the Board of Directors pursuant 1o a stock price formula and valuation process which includes an appraisal prepared by an independent appraisal tirm. The Board of

Directors reserves the right to alter the formula and valuation process

Dther ﬁnancual Instruments -

In Qctober 1994 SFAS Nao, 119, “Disclosure about Denvatwe Financial instruments and Fair Varue of Financial Instmments was :ssued The Cnmpany has
adopted the Fsclosure requirements of SFAS No. 119 for the year ended January 31, 1995,

- Ris the Company’s policy not to enter into derivafive financial instruments for speculative purposas. During 1895, the Comparry entered inte forelgn curency
forward exchange contracts to protect against currency exchange risks associated with certain firm and identifiable foreign currency commitments entered into in
the ordinary course of business. At January 31, 1995, the Company had approximalely $5,066,000of fareign currency forward exchange contracts in Australian
dollars and Spanish pesetas outstanding with net unreafized iosses of $BB 000. These contracts were exscuted with creditwozthy banks forte{ms of less than eight
manths, :

:

Financial instruments which potentiatly subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash eguivalents and- fang-term
investments. The Company invests its excess cash principally in U.S. Government and municipal d&bt securities and commercial paper and has established
quidelines relasive o diversification and maturities in an effort to maintain safety and I|qmd|ty These guidelines are perlodlcally reviewed and madlﬁed io take
advantage of trends in yietds and interest rates. ]

.Concentrations. of credit risk with respact to receivables are Ilmned because the Cumpanys primaty customers are vannus agencies of the Umted States

* Government as well as commercial customers engaged ih work for the United States Government. As of January 31, 1895, there were no significant cnnc_enh'auons

of receivables with these commercial customers.
Reclassifications o _
Gertain amounts fram previdus years have been reclassified in the consclidated financial statements to conform to the 1995 presentation.

~

ANote @ —_ ._/{cgzma‘ma: _
-Acquisitions of certain business assets and companies have been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. The ﬂperatlons of the companies and~

" buginesses acquired have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition. The excess of the

purchase price over fair value af the net assets acquired has been included in intangible assets as goodwill. The aggregate effect of the purchased acquisitions was
_not material, therefore, pro forma financial information is not reguired.

ANote 6 — .ggmrmm Je. Lg/)zerzz‘ %wm:m | ' ' ‘ : T

The Company's pnnmpal business involves the application of scientific expertise, together ‘with computer and systems technology. to solve complex technical

probiems for govemment agencies and industrial customers. The skitls of the professtonal staff encompass a variety of scientific and technica! disciplines and the -

management structure is based upon broad technological groupings, not necessarily relaied to any partlcular mdustry line of business, geographical area, market
or class of cusiomer. )
fFor purposes of ana%yzmg and understandlng the Companys financiai statements, its operanons have bieen classified infc two broad segments: Technical
Services and Products. The Technical Services segment is further classified betwsen the National Securty, Environment, Energy and Dmer business areas Other
busmess areas include health, spate, transporiation and commercial information technology. “ :
* Technica! services consist of applied and basic research; analysis and development of new and existing policies, cuncepts systems ard programs; design
and development '6f compuiter saftware; systems engineering; systems integration; test and evaluation of new products or systems; technical operational and
management support; environmental engineering; and engineering support to existing facmtles laboratories and systems. -
Products include custom designed and standard hardware and software products such ag data dispiay devices, “ruggedized” personal computers, sensors
and ndndestructive imaging instruments. These products lyp:caliy mcorpurate Company-develeped hardware and softwars as well as hargware and software
manufactured -by athers.
Segment information from prewous years has been reclassified to conform to the 1995/ presentatlun The rect assﬂ“ cations had no effect on ihe consolidated
financisl position or results of operations for the years ended Jantary 31 1994 and 1993
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Industry segmen? information is as follows: - .
Year ended January 31
1995 1904 . 1993
. Contract revenues: . L .
Technical Services— ) . . i i R N .
National Securlty . . . . .. e e e -$ 891,181 3 B30581 § 764,280
Environment .- . ... .. R e 264,511 . 253,937 225,958
Erergy .. ... B P 169,732 156,604 157,320
Other . .. ... e . 423,362 287,622 230,926
R T 171,206 140,741 116,349
INtBrest INCOME . .« . oo e e Y 1,888 1307 . 279
Total revenues ~ . ............. Ry e L. 81,921,880 $1,670882 31504112
Operating profit: . A
: -Technical Services— L : 4 "

. National Security . .. . . e $ 25356 § 27252 '§ 3308
: ' Environment . . .. .. .. ... .. .. S .. 12,962 11,34 "B,503
| . ENSrgy .« .ovoee e e o P 9,824 7,985 6,675
i OB i T e 26,526 - 11,768, 7.789

Products . .. ... ....... e I e ' 6,618 13,141 5,684

: : 81,286 71487 62667
Interést income ... .. ..., ... ... PR e 1,888 1,307 - .21 .
Interest expense . ... ... ... . P e {3,468) (2,066} {2,841)
Income before income taxes . .©. ... .. ... L. P, $ 79,706 . 3 ©69828 % 60,105
“Identifiable. assets: - ; '

Technical Services— _ :
Nationat Security . .. ... e $ 181444 § 180752 § 170422
EVIrOnmEBNt & . . . o e e e e o 72,867 - £6,402 58,382
Energy . ..... e e [ 43,730 37.453 46,831
Other ... .. .. s . e e 156,650 83,716 45,346

Products. . ... ... e [ N o 38,627 40,694 43,967
. - . - - 493,318 386107 364,748
Corporate and other B8RS . L e e e e 259,266 222 468 158,865
Totalassets . ...... . ...................... T e $ 752584 § 611575 § 523613

- Because of the nature of the Company's business, sales between segments are not material. Segment operating results reflect general corporate expenss
allocations because all such expenses are aflocated to individual cost objectives by the Company, as required by Government Cost Accounting Standards.
Identifiable assets of the respacti\;e industry segments consist of receivables, inventories and goodwill. All other assets are either corporate in nature, are net
identifiable with particular segmants or are not matevlal. Capital expenditures and depreciaticn and amortization are not identified as to industry segments for

_ similar reasons.
Dunng 1995,1994 and 1993, approximately 86%, 88% dnd 88%, respectively, of the Campany s coniract revenues werg attributable to prime contracts with
“the United States Government er to subcontracts with other contragtors-engaged in work for the United States Govemment Formgn pperations and revenues
dlrecﬂy attributable to forelgn customers are not-material. :
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Note D — Go”;bm% o Gertain Financial Satement Guptions:

January 31
. 1995 1994
Inventories: ‘ ’ - L
Contracts-in-process, Iess pmgress payments of §1,971 and $3 903 at January 31, 1995 and 1994 respectively $ 6,794 § 7,196
Raw matenals ........................... e e e e e . 18,562 7,568
o . ' $ 25356 $14764-
_ Property and equipment at cost: . - ' S Lo
Computers and other equipment . . ... . ... e RV e e e $132,629 §120617
Office furniture and fixlures . . . ... .. o e N 18,136 15551
" Leasehold improvements . . . . . . .. e e - 12,004 10,951
S s L . . 162,769 147,119
Less accumuiated depreciation and amortization . . ... .. PR S S 105,054 96,538
_ ) . $57,715  $ 50581
Land and buildings at cost: - . . -7
Buildings and improvements . . .. . . . SN A e L e e Co-... $75884 F57T785
land ............ e I - 20919 . 17,078
+ Land held for future use . .. .. . ..., e e . 702 790
: S : - 91505 75653
tess accumulated depreciation and amortization . .. .. .. o e ‘. 8,508 6,482

o : $ 88,007 $ 62,161

- Accounts payable and accrued liabifities:

Accounts payable and other accruad liabilties .. ... ... ... . I R $135,831 % 88,552

Callections in excess of revenues on uncompleted contracts .. . .. .. .. P R e 55,598 44 881
e ) . $191,429  $133433

. Accrued payroll and emplnyee benefits: . e _ . D - T

" Salaries, bonuses and amounts withtietd from empluyem compensatlon ......... e T $ 70401 § 59,891

Accrued vacation .. L. L e N 41,285 36.731
Acprued contributions o empioyee benefit plans . ... .. e e T .13,089 - 9926,

$124,745 $i06548 -

Aote & — .%ecewaé/&s.
Receivabies cansist of the following:

January 31

. 1995 1894
Flecewahles pnmanly U S. Guvemment less allowance for doubtfu} accounts® uf $1.214 and $755 at January 31, ) T
1895 and 1994, respectively: . ) . : . .
“Billed . e e T T '. ... §$310470 $256,995
Unhllled 1ess progress paymen!s of $30, 113 amj $16,738 at January 31 1995 and 1994, respechve]y ..... . 77,749 81,69%
Contract retgntions . . . . . . e e e e W ... 23570 18,141
Refundable incomé taxes ;... .. e o e e S, 10,042 -

$421,790 $356,836

~

Unbilled receivables at January 31, 1995 and 1994 include $13,776,000 and $16,228,000 respectively, related to costs incurred on projects far which the
Company has heen requested by the customer to begin work under a new c'cnt_ract or exiend work under a present contract, but for which formal coniracts or.
contract rnodﬁmahdns have not been executed. The balance of unbilied receivables cansist of costs and fees biliable an contract complstion or other specified
gvents, the majorily of which i |s expected to be billed -and collected within one year The ma;onty of the retention balance is expected fobe co!lected bevond one
year.
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Aote F — Aotes Q?cyaé/

The Cemnany has substantially equivalent unsecured Tevohving credrmerm loan agreements with three banks iotaling $67,500,000 whlch allow borrowings
on & revolving basis undil July 1, 1996. At that time, the Company has the option to borrow under thee-year term notes, payable intwelve quarterly installments.
The agreements enable borrowings at various interest rates, at the Company's Option, based on prime, money market, London interbank borrowing, certificate of
depusit, bankers' acceptance, or other negotiated rates. Annual facility fees are 1/4 of 1% of the total commitment during the initial revolving credit term.

There were no balances outstanding under the creditterm loan agreements at January 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993. As of January 31, 1995, the entire
$67,500,000 was available under the most restrictive debt covenants of the creditAerm loan agreements. The maximum amaunts outstanding were $12,800,000,
$19,200,000 and $31,000,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectwety The average amount outstanding was $197,000, $541,000 ang $6,724,000 during
1995, 1994 and 1293, respectively. The welghted average intergst rate in 1995, 1994 and 1993 was 4.9%, 3.5% and 4.5%, respectively, based upon average '
daily balances. _

Note & — &Mé@ Qm‘agﬁ: Plans-

Effectwe February 1, 1994, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (* SFAS Y No. 112, "Emptoyers Accounting for Postemploy-
ment Benefits,” and Statement of Pasition {(“SOP") 93-6, "Employers Accounting fer Employes Stock Ownership Plans.” Adaption of SFAS No. 112, which required
the Company, 10 recognize an odligation to provide postemployment benefits in accordance with previously issued standards, had an immaterial effect on net
income in 1995. While adoption of SOP 83-6 required certain dlsclesures in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements it did not have an effect on the
Company's financial position or resuits of _pperations in 1985, ’

Effective-January 1, 1995, the Company merged two af its former profit sharing retirement plans into one principal Profit Shanng Retirament Plan in which
eligible employees parfictpate. Particlpants' interests vest 25% per year in the third through sixth year of service. Participants also beceme fully vested upon
reaching age 59'/%, permanent disability or death. Cantributions charged 1 income under the plans were $27,420,000, $20,471,000 and $12,114,000 for 1995,
1994 and 1993, respectively.

_The Comnpany has an Employee Stock Ownershlp Ptan {tbe “Plan") i in which eligible employees participate Cash contributions to the Plan are based upon
arnounts determined annually by the Board of Directors and are allocated to participanis' accounts based on their annual compensation. The Company recognizes
cumpensauon expense &s the fair value of the Company gommon stock ar cash in the year of contribution. The vesting reqmrements for the Plan are the same s
for the Profit Sharing Retirement Plan. Shares of Company commen stock distributed from the Plan bear a limited put option that, if exercised, would require the
{Company to repurchase the shares at their current fair value. At January 31, 1895, the Plan held 15,874,000 sharas of Class A comman stock and 37,100 shares
of Class B common stock with & combined fair value of $254,031,000. Contributions charged to income under the Plan were $10,516, DUO $15,096,000, and
$13,904,000 for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectwely :

The Cnmpany has cne principal Cash or Deferred Amangement (CODA) which ‘allows eligibie participants to defer a porhun of their mcome thmugn
coniributions, Such defemals are fully vested, are not taxable to the participant until distributed from the CODA upon termination, retirement, permanent disability or
death and may be masched by the Company. The Cempanys matching contributions to the CODA of $10,977,000, $7,673,000, and $6,608,000 were charged to -
income in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectlyely Effective January 1, 1995, the Company's matching contributions to employees hired after such date will be subject
to the same vesting requirements as for the Profit Sharing Retirement Pian, while the Company's matching contributions for existing employees remain fully vested.

The Company has a Bonus Compensation Plan which provides for bonuses to reward outstanding employee performance. Bonauses are paid in the form of
cash, fully vasted shares of Class A common stock or vesting shares of Class A common stock. Awards of vesting shares of Class A comman stock made prior to-

B “July 10, 1992, vest at the rate of 10%, 20%, 30% and-40% after cne, two, three and four years, ;esnemwely, from the date of award. Awards of vesting shares _nf
“ Class A common stock made after July 10, 1992, vest at the rate of 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% after one, twa, three and four years, respectively. The amounts

charged 1o income under this plan were $23,831,000, $20.111.DOD. and $19,234,000 for 1995; 1994 and 1993, respectively.

During 1985, the: Company adopted the Stock Compensation Plan and the Management Stock Compensaticn Plan, together refetmed 1o a5 the “Stock
Compensation Plans.” The Stock Compensation Plans provide for awards of share units to eligible employees, which share units generally correspond to shares of
Class A comman stock which are held in trust for the benefit of participants. Panicipants’ interests in these share units vest on a seven year schedule at the rate of-

_ one-third at the end of each of the fifth, sixth and seventh years following the date of the award. The amount charged to income under these plans was $160,000 .

for 1995. S
The Cempany alsn has an Employe Stock Purchase Plan Wthh allows eligible empleyees to purchase sfiares of the Company 5 Ctass A comman stock, with

“the Company contributing 5% of the existing fair market value. There are no charges to income under this plan.
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Note FC— Tncome Ta.xes: .

-The provision for income taxes includes the follcnwmg

Year ended January 31
1995 - 1994 1993

| fir thousands)

*Payable cumently:

FROEMAL . .ot e e P .. $20138  $31482  $27.247 -
State and foreign . .. ... .. B R © 8110 7.408 7,224
Deferred: C ' . : ' ‘ _
Federal . . .t T L (5300) (8,650  (10,121)
State and foreign . ... LRI (1,284 (1913 2320
' ' 30,654 $98,328 $22,030

Deferred income taxes are provided for significant income and expenss tems recognized in differant years for tax and financial reporting purpeses. Deferred
tax assets (iabilities) are compnsed oi the following temporary differences:

1985 1994
E ’ fin: thourands)
Incomne recognitior:: . . . : : ‘
Contractually billable methed . . ... ... ... e seeeee.....Tso. $16,857 . $10.879
Completed contract method . .. .. .. ... .. R JE P - 2,127 6,727
Accrued vacation pay . . . . . e SO . . 15240  140M
" Defered compensation - . .. ........... . T e . : 6,628 5,374
Vesting-stock bonuses ... ... ... .. e e 4,591 . 3,720
Other .. ... . R Vo L I SRR ... _8km 2384
Total deferred tax assets . . . ... ... ... .. .. e e e e e L 48,920 43,085
Emplovee benefit pian contribuions . . . . . ...l P . (9,356)  (10.270)
Depreciation and amortization . . . . .. .. .. .. ... ... ... e (4,026) (5,054
Cash to atcrual basis conversion for certain subsidiaries ~ - . Ce e e I (2,221}
Coniributions to voiuntary employee beneficiary association . . . . .. ... e . {1,562)
Oter........... e e e {1,875) (520)
Total deferred tax liabilities ......... e e e C O [17.478). (17.408)
Net defered tax asset . ... .. ... T o R SR .. % 31,442 - §25,689

A reconciliation of the provision for i income taxes to me amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate {35% for 1995 antd 1994, and

- 34% for 1993} 1o income before-income taxes follows

Year endad January a1 .
1995 1924 1993

o fin housandsy

Amount computed at statutory ratE. . ... e e ... 827,897 $24,440 $20733B

State income taxes, net of federal tax berefit . ... ... ... .. e 4303 3573 3236

Revision of prior years’ tax esfimates . ... .. .. . L oo o e (4,134) (251 {1,887

Nondeductible meals and entertaiament .~ .. .. PP 2,150 772 705

Other . .. ... PP S o 438 {206) {480)
’ - . ‘ $30,654 $28,328 322,030

Other assets inciude deferred income taxes of $10,906,000 and $3,606,000 at January 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Income taxes p'aid in 1995, 1594
and 1983 amounted to $35,600,000, $38,332,000, and $25,480,000, respectively. The effective rates for 1995, 1984 and 1993 have been reduced as a resutt
of ongoing resalutions af certain issues relating to prior vear federal and state income tax returms as well as & favorable seftiement of 1386 and 1987 tax years.

- 3
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Long-term liabilities consist of the following;

January 31 -

N 1995 1994

o (in thousandl)
Mortgage payable collateralized by real property . . ... ... ... .. .. e e $12551  $12.654
Deferred compensaion”. . . .- ... ... .. O I 14,042 - 11,608
Other . .. .. . e O I S 3844 1940
. ) ‘ T _ ' ‘ 30437 26,203

LESS CUMNT POHOR /4 o oot e e e e S 1,482 1,143

In connection with the purchase of land and a building in 1991, the Company assumed & mortgage note of $12 800,000. Terms of the note include an 8.88%
interest rate and monthly payments of principal"and interest of $102,000 uatil July 1, 1997 when the reraining prmcmal batance becomes due.

The Company maintains a Keystaff Deferral Plan for the benefit of key executives and directors, pursuant to which eligitie participants may elect to defer a
portion of their compansation. The Company makes no contributipns 1o the accounts of pariicipants under this plan but does credit participant accounts for deferred
compensatmn amounts and for interest samed on such deferred corpensation. Interest Is accrued based on the Moody's Seasoned Corporate Bond Rate (7.26%
in 1995), Deferred balances will generally be paid upon the later of ten years ‘of plar’ participation or retizement, unlgss participants elect an early pay-out. - °

The carmying amount of the Campany's long-ferm liabilities approximates fair value. The fair vaiue of the Company’s long-term fiahilities is esbmated based on
the cument rates offered to the Company for similar debt of the same Temaining maturities.

Maturitles of Jong-term Jiabifities are as follows:

Year ending January 31

(ir: thosands)

0B . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 1,482
1987 .. ... .. T e e e e e T e e e e e e 631
0 . . o e e e e e e e e e e T e e 14,490
== X O O B54 .
101 N 316
2000 andaiter .. ... .. ... T 12,864

) $30,437

" “The Company has opiions outstandlng under two stock aption plans, the 1992 Steck Omlun Pian {the 1892 Plan) which was adepted effsctive July 10, 1992,
and e 1982 Stock Optian Plan (the 1982 Plan). Under the 1932 and 1382 Plans; options are granted at prices not fess than the fair market vaiue at the date of
grant ang for terms not greater than ten years. Optlon:, granted prior 16 July 10, 1992 generally becoms exercisable 10%, 20%, 30% and 40% after one, twe,
three and four years, respactively, from the date of grant. Options granted after July 19, 1892 generally become exermsable 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% after.cne,
Two, thres and four years, respectively, from the date of gramt. Mo options have been granted under the 1982 Plan after Juiy 10, 1992, the date me 1982 Plan
terminated. The Company makes no charge 1o income in connection with these Plans.

As of January 31, 1895, 17, 533,000 shares of Ciass A commen stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of options which are uutstandmg or which
may be granted. As of January 31 1995, options for 4, 014 000 shares of Class A common siock were exercisable and 5, 980 000 shares of Class A common
stack ware available for future grams
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A summary of changes in outstandlng options under the Plans dunng the three years ended Jaﬂuary 31 1995. is as follows:

Option prices . Shares ‘of Class A common’
. per share - stock undertying options
- o o (ndhousands)
January 31,1982 . .. ... ... ..., e e e TR 3 68210 $10.83 . 9,880
Options granted. . . . . . A e ...... e 111510 11.83 _ 2,864
Options canceled . . . . . . B e e 6.82 10 ~11.83 - (556)
OphonS BXGICISBO . . . . . . .t et e . 68210 10.83 (1,759)
Cdanuary 31,1993 L. S 70410 11.83 - 10539 .
Options granted, . . . ... .. .. e e e e 1201 o 1312 ' 2,580
Options canceled . . . .. ........... e e 7.04 to 1312 (442)
Options exextised . . . ... u e R ... 7D4to 1183 - (1,988)
January 31,1994 . . ... P e e . 819 1312 10,689
Optiorg granted. . . . .. .......... T, e 1419t 1507 3,201
Dptions canceled . . . . . i R (PR PR - 819t0 15.07 (645)
- Options exercised . . . ... ... ol e B19to 1312 (1,581) -
January 31, 1995 .. ... P e P -$ 9.32 to $15.07" 11,653

The Company has agreed to make available for | issuance, purchase or pptions appmxlmately 1,114, 000 shares of Class A comman stock to emp%oyees
prospective employees and consuttants generally contmgent upcn.commencement of employment or the occurrence of certain events. The selling price of shares
and the exercise price of oplions are 10 be the fair market value at the date such shares are made available or options are granted. | -

JNote ‘9‘?4 — Gommdmerits and. Qomfgr,mcz&s
L The Gompany occupies most ofits facilities under operating leasas. Most of the Ieases require the Company to pay maintenance and operatlng expenses
~ such as taxes, insurance and utilities and also contain renewal options extending the leases from ons 1o twenty years. Gertain of the leases ontain purchase
options and provisions for perodic rate escatations 1o reflect cost-of-living increasss. Certain equipment, primarily computer-rélated, is leased under short-term or
cancelabls Isases. Rental expenses for facilities and eguipmant totaled $58,538,000, $57,213,000 and $54,050,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respeciively.
Minimum rental commitments, primarily for facilities, under all nencancelable operating leases in effect at January 31, 1085, are payabie as follows:

Year ending January 31 - _ . ' . on chousands)
L NP e $ 41,826
1007 . e e e 25,003
1088 . 17,348
1090 . e 13,506
P00 o e e e e e i 8,584
I 1 11, S T T 11,393
$117,760

The Company leases & general purpose offlca buiiding and has guaranteed 2 $12,250,000 loan on behalf of the building owner. Gertam ﬁnanmal ratios and
balances required by the guarantee have been maintained.

Gther commitments at January 31, 1995 1nclude,0utstandmg tetiers of credit aggregatlng $11,676,000, principally related to guarantess on contracts with
commercial and foreign customers, and outstanding surety bonds agyregating $86,324,005, principally related to performance and payment type bonds.

On February 15,1 994 the Company was served with search warrants and a subpoena for documents and records associated with the performance by the
SAIT operating unit of the Company under three contracts with the DOD. The search warrants and subpoena state ihat the U. S. Government is seeking evidence
regarding the making offalse statements and false claims tc the DOD, as well as conspiracy to commit such affenses. Thie search warmant and subpoena appear o

" be based upan allegations contained in a civil complaint that had been filed under seal on March 13, 1983 by an employse of the Company's SAIT cperating unit.

The complaint was filed in the LS. District Sourt for the Southem Distiict of Califomia and sought damages on behalf of the U.S. Govemment under the Féderal
False Claims Act. On Angust 1, 1894, the Department of Justice on behalf of the U.S. Govemment announced its intention to intervene in the case. Based on the
Company's mation, on November 8, 1984, the District Court dismissed the empioyee who had originalty filed the complaint from the lawsiiit, leaving onty the U.S.
Government and the Company as parties. The employee has appealed the District Court's order to the U. S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Gircuit. The Company has
engaged in a series of presentations and submissions with the Department of Justice in which the Company responded to issues raised by the Department of
Justice. At this stage of the proceedings, the Company is unabie to assess the impact, if any, of this mveSUQatlon and lawsuit on its consolidated financial position,
resutts of operations or ability to conduct business. -

The Company is involved in varicus other investigations, claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct ofﬁs busmess none of which, in the opmmn of the
Company’s management, will have a matenal adverse effect on its consolidated financial posmon results of operations or #s ablhty fo conduct business.
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Charges to costs and expenses for depreciation and amortization of buildings, property and eqmpment were $21,481,000, $20,120,000 and $1 9 956,000
for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
The Company expensed $8,490,000, $5,688, ODO and $8 238,000 of independent research and deveiopmenl costs during 1995 1994 and 1993,

‘respectwely
Totai |nterest paid in 1995 1994 and 1983 amounted o $1 514,000, $1,449,000 and $1. ?43 B30 respeciwely
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REPORT OF INDEPENDEN‘i’ ACGOUNTANTS

Price %terhouse'LLP S | “

Science Apphcatmns lntematlunal Corporataon oo

.

!n our gpinion, the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets and the related consohdated statements of income and of stockholders' equity and of cash °
ﬂuws present firly, in alt maienal respects; the financial posmun of Science Applications Intermational Corparation and its subsidiaries at January31, 1995 and

-1994, and the results of their operatluns and their cash fiows for. each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 1995, in conformity with generally

accepted accountmg principles. These financial statements are the responsibility. of the Company’s management; our responsibility is fo express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits: We conducted our audits of these staterents in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards -which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis - eviderice supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements, assessing the accountlng principles used and _
significant estimates made by management, and evaiuating the overall firancial ‘statement presentation. We believe that our audits prmnde a reasonable basis for .

the opinion expressed above,

PWW

N

San Diego, Callfnmla
March 31, 1995 -
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA — FIVE YEARS

Year ended January 31

1985 T 1984 1993 1992 1991
o ' . (o Armoeents: in thowsands, azn;é( WJA;#J‘ ahare)
Revenues ... . ... T Cooo .0l $1921,880  $1670882 $1,504112 $1.285204  $162.93
Costof revenues . ........ e I S, 1,692,623 1477701 1327992 1,124,756 1,016,250
- Selling, general and admiristrative expenses . . . ... . [ 146,083 ) 120,387 113,174 11,835 90,722
Interest expense ... ........ S, P - 3468 " 2,966 2,841 2064 - 1,999
Provision for income taxes . . . ... ... ... ... . P 30,654 ' 28,328 22,030 22,023 20,662
Net income . . . . : e S P . 49,052 41500 38,075 3616 33,301
Eamings per share (1) .. .. .... .. .. R $ i $ B3 % 83 % 708 73
Average nuimber of shares outstanding, including common stock eguivalents . 49,264 47,429 - 46,175 44 825 45,921
~ ) . .-
. January 31

. 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
Totdl assels . . ... ... ... U .................. $ 752584 $ 611,575 § 523613 § 437975 § 372788
Working capital . . . . . e e T I 173,467 206,580 174,797 A31,177 115,122
Long-term fiabiliies . .. .... ... ... .. .. ... e e 28,955 25,060 25,851 27,036 26,079
Stockholders’ eguity . . & . . . ... e 387,564 335,502 280,047 234 874 208,751

{1} Fully diluted-eamings per share are substaatially the same as primary gamings per share for the years presented, The Company has never declarsd or paid
cash dividends on its capital stock and no cash dividends are presently contemplated.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITIDN
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS :

Results of Operations

~ Revenues increased 15%, 11% and 17% in 1995, 1904 and 1943, respectively, over the prior year. Revenues in 1925 from the Campanys pnnmpai
customer, the U.S. Govemment, continued to shift toward Iower cost service type contracts as also oceurred in 1994 from 1993. This trénd reflects the increasingly
competitive business environment in the Company’s tradltlonal business areas, as well as the Company s increased suctess'in the engmeertng and field serwces
market, which typically involve lower cost contracts. .

The sale of Technical Services and Products to the U.S. Government as a prima contractor or subcontractor accounted for 86% of revenues in 1923, and 88%
in 1994 and 1883. This decrease is attributable to growth in nan-U.S. Govemment revenues as a result of the Company’s efforts to increase revenues from state
and local governments and commercial clients in certain focused business areas. The revenue mix between the Technical Services segment and the Products
segment shifted slightly o 1% and 9%, respectively, of consolidated revenyes in 1895 from 92% and 8%, respectively, of consolidated revenues i 1994 and
1993,

Within the Technical Services segment, revenues are furiher classifted between “National Security,” “Environment,” “Energy” and “Orher Technical Services.”
Other Technica! Services includes the health, space, fransportation and commercial information technology business areas. Reverues in each of the business area
classifications within the Technical Services segment increased in 1935 over 1994.

National Security revenues decreased 10 46% of total revenues in 1935 fram 50% in 1894 and 51% in 1993. Although National Security revenues declingd
as a percentage of total revenues, these revenues increased 7% in 1985, 9% in 1984 and 13% in 1993 over ths prior year, in spite of declines in the overall
dafense market during these periods, The U.S: Govemnment ma|ma|ned funding in areas in which the Campany has strony capabilities, such as research and
development, iraining, simulation and test and evaluaiion. Revenues in the. Environment business area decreased slightly as & percentage of total revenues to 14%
in 1995 from.15% in 1994 and 1993. Energy revenues remained constant at 9% «f total revenues for 1995 and 1584, down slightly from 10% in 1993. Other
Techrical Services revenues have increased 10 22% of tatal revenues in 1995 from 17% in 1994 and 16% in 1983. The continued growth in Other Technical
Senvices reflects the Company's expansion into the health, transportation and commercial information technology markets and mirrors the countrys shift of
priorities and resurces from defense programs to civitian programs in areas such as health care and transportation, The Company expects this trend'to continue.
In order for the Company to maintain or exceed hlstoncal revenue growth rates, it will need to continue to increase its markst share in the Natlonai Security business
area or its revenues from the envirenment, energy, health, space, transpartation and commercial information technology business areas.’

Product revenues increased 22%, 21% and 28% it 1985, 1954 and 1993, respectively, over the prior year. The increases in Prudum revenues have primarily
gocurred on existing mature product lines.

. Revenues are generated from the efforts of the Company s technical staff as well as the pass through of costs for ma&erlats and subcontract efforts which
primarily occur on large, multi-year contracts. At the end of 1995, the Company had 16,700 full-time employses compared to 15,400 and 14,200 at the end of
1894 and 1993, respectwely Material and subcontract {*M&S") revenues were $560 million in 1995, $458 milfion in 1994 and $402 milion in 1933 As &
percentage of total revenues, M&S Tevenues were 29% in 7995 and 27% in 1894 and 1993 and have increased due to the growth in the pass through of M&S
costs onl certain large, multi-year sysrems mtegra‘uon contracts and the growth of Product sevenues. Product revenues generally have & very high percentage of
M&S cost. content.

The Company's business is directly refated 1o the eceipt of coniract awards and contract performance There were 333 cuntracts with annual revenues
greater than $1 millior: in 1593, compared with 204 such contracts in 1394. These largsr contracts represented 77% of the Company’s revenues in each of these
years, Of these coniracts, 20 centracts had individual revenues greater than §10 million in 1985 and 1994, The remainder of the Gompany's revenues are derived

- from g large nurnbgr of contracts with individual reverues less than $1 million, Although the Company has committed substantial resources.and personnel required

to pursue larger contracts, the Company believes it maintains a suﬁahle environment for the performance of smatler, highly technlcal research and developmant
gontracts. These smaller programs often provide the foundation fer the Company's success on farger procurements.
The following table summarizes revenues by coniract type for the last three years:

Year ended January 31
1995 1934 1993

Contract type: _ . : . -

° Cost-reimbursement . . . .. e B ooo.... 59% 0 B0% © 59%
Time-and-materials and fixed-price ievel- of—effurt Cn e e e 2% 2% 0% .
B KBO-DMCE « « . o o oot ot et e e e e e e L 19% 19% 21%

O . e S S e L 100%  100% © 100%

Cost-reimbursement contracts provide for the reimbursement of direct costs and allowable indirect costs, plus a fee or profit component. Tima-and-materials™ *
(*T&M"} contracts- typically provide for the payment of negotiated fixed hourly rates for labor hours incurred plus reimbursemient of other allowable direct costs at -
actual cost plus aliocable indirect casts. Fixed-price level-of-affort (*FP-LOE™) Contracts are similar to T&M coRTacts since ultimately revenues are based upon the
labor hours provided te the customer. Firm fixed-price contracts requie the Company to provide stipulated products, systems or services for a fixed price. The
Company assumes greater performance risk on firm fixed-price contracts and the faifure 10 accurately estimale ultimate costs or to control costs during
parformance of the wark may result’in reduced profits or losses. ’ : )

The cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues {exciuding interest income) was 88, 29, in 1985, 88.5% in 1994 and 88.3% in 1993, This relatively
constant cost of revenues percantage represents a number of offsetting effects. Trénds Wthh increased the cost of revenues percentage are taster revenue umwth-
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in M&S revenues, which have nearty all their associated costs in the cost of revenyes category; faster revenue growth in lower cost service type contracts, which

‘typicatly have more of their associated costs in cost of revenues and less costs in sefling, general and agministrative (“SG&A”) expenses; and overruns during the.
performance of certain firm fixed-price contracts in 1995, 1994 and 1993, which resulted in losses or lower profits for such contracts. The primary trend which
decreased the cost of revenues percentage is the grnwttt in commercial revenues, which have mare of their associated costs in SG&A as opposed to cost of
revenues.

SGRA expenses as a percentage of revenues (excludmg interest |ncome) werg 7.6%, 7. 2% and 7.5% in 1895, 1994 and 1993, respectwely SGEA is
comprised of general and administrative {*G&A", bid-and proposal {* B&P™ and independert research and development (“IR&D") expenses. BEP costs have
remained constant in relation to revenues over the past three years. The level of B&P activity.and costs has historically flucfuated depending on-the availability of
bidding opportunities and resources. During 1995, IR&D costs increased as a percentage of revenues due to a focused effart by the Company 10 build core
capabilities in areas which it believes are key to its futire growth: distribisted interactive simulation, imagery, medical, environmental and soﬂware development.

" GRA expenses increased 21% over 1994 and increased as a percentage of total revenues o 5.2% in 1995 trom 5.0% in 1994, This relative increase was driven by
the growth in revenues from commercial contracts which have more of their associated costs in G&A, and an increase in goodwnl amortization costs due to an
increase in the number of business acqunsntlons in 1995 and 1994. The Company continues 1o closely manitor G&A expenses as part of an an- gomg program 1o
control indirect costs.

. Operating profit margins by segment are strongly correlated 0] the Company s financial performance on the cnntracts within eaen segment The operatlng

B prefn margtn in the Technical Services segment increased-to 4.3% in 1985 from 3.8% in 1994 and 4.1% in 1993. The Natignal Security operating profit margin
was 2.8% in 1995; compared 1o 3, 3% in 1994 and 4. 3% in 1993, The lower operating profit margms in 1995 and 1994 as compared fo 1993 were a result of
overruns on certain firm fixed-price contracts i the National Security area. Erwironment aperating profit margins were 4.9%, 4.5% and 4.2%, respectively, for
1995, 1994 and 1993, Energy aperating profit marginsnereased o 5.8% in 1995 from 5.1% in 1994 and 4.2%in 1983, primarily due to higher profit margins an

“contiacts with COmmMErcial utilities. The cperating profit margin in Other Technical Services increased to £.3% in 1995 from 4.1% in 1994 and 3.2% in 1993. The
incrgase in operatmg profit margins in Cther Technical Services in 1995 and 1594 over 1993 was a result of an improvement in the performance of certain firm
fixed-price contracts. The operating profit margin: in the Produsts segment detreased to 3.9% in 1995 from 9,3% in 1894 and 4.8% in 1983. The 1995 decrease
s atributable to overruns on certain firm fixed-price coniracts, while the 1994 intrease in profitmargin was attributable to higher marging on existing product lines.
In general, averall operating profit margins for the Company in 1995, 1994 and 1993 are lower than historical margins due o increased cempetition and overruns
on certain firm fixeg-price contracts.

Interest expense in 1995, 1994 and 1993 pnmanly relates to interest on a building morigage, deferred compensation and borrowings outstandlng underthe
Company's credit/term loan agreements Although interast expense on borrowings under the Company’s creditferm loan agreements decreased in 1985 from
1994 and 1993. averall irterest expense increased primarily due to interest accruad on the deferred cumpensatlun plans.

The provision for income taxes as a perceniage of income before income taxes was 38.5% in 1895, 40.6% in 1994 and 36.7% in 1993, The decrease in the

. -effective rate for 1995 from 1994 was primariy related to a final settlement of Certain issues related to the Company's 1986 and 1987 federal and state income tax

returns. The increase in the effective rate for 1994 was pnmanty attributable to. the increase in the federal statutory rate s a result of tha Omnibus Budget

_Reconciliation Act of 1993, as well 2s a lower level of downward revisions of prigr year tax estimates as "3 result of 0ngoing resulutlons of certain issues relating to
‘prior year federal and state income tax returns.

' As descrlbed in the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements, effective February 1, 1934, the Bumpany adopted Statemant of Financial Aceeuntmg

Standards (“SFAS™) Mo. 112, “Empioyers’ Accounting for Postemp oyment Benefits,” SFAS No. 115, ‘Accountlng for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities,” SFAS No. 119, “Disclosure about Derivative Financial instruments and Fair Value of Financial instruments,” and Statemenit of Position (*S0P?) 93-6,

“Employars' Accounting far Emp oyee Stock Cwnership Plans.” Adaption of-SFAS No. 112, which required the Company to TRCOgNize an obilgatxen 0 prowde

postemployment benefits in accordance with previgusly issued standards, did not have a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations

in 1995. Adoption of SFAS No. 115, SFAS No. 118 and SOP 93- 8 WhtCh required certain dlSCIOSUFES in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, did not
have an effect on the Companys financial position or results.of npe'atmns in 1995, . -
On February 15, 1994, the Company was sesved with search warranis and a subpgena for decuments and records asscciated with the perfemtance by the,

SAT operating unit of the Company under three contracts with the Department of Defense (D0D}. The Search warrants and subpoena state that the U.S.

Govemnment is-Seeking evidence regarding the making of false statements and false claims to the DOD, as well as conspiracy to commit such offenses. The search

warrants and subpoena appear ta be-based upon atiegations contained in a civil complaint that had been filed under saal on March 13, 1953 by an employes of the

Company's SAIT operating unit. The complaint was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Sauttiem District of California and sought gdamages ¢ on behalf of the U.S.

Government under the Federal False-Claims Acl. On August 1; 1994, the Deparment of Justice on behalf of the U. ¢ Govemment announced its intention to

intervene in the case. Based on the Company’s motion, on November B, 1994, the District Court dismissed the empleyee who had originallyfiled the complaint

from the lawsuit, Jeaving only the U.S. Government and the Company as parties. The empioyee has appeated the District Gourt's order to the U.S. Court of Appeals

- for the Ninth Circuit. The Company:has engaged in a series of presentations and submissions with the Department of Justice in which the Company responded to

issties raised by the Depariment of Justice..At this stage of the proceedings, the Company is unable to assess the impact, if any, of this investigation and lawsLit on

its consolidated financial pasition, results of ‘operations or its ability to conduct business.
The Campany is nvolved in various other investigations, claims and lawsuits arising in'the normal conduct of its busiriss, none of which, in4he opinion of the

Company's management will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or its abillty to conduct business.

-

Liquidity and Capttal Resuurces

The Comeanys primary sources of fiquidity continue to be funds pruvmded by Gperations and revalving credit/term oan agreernents At January 31 1995 and
1994, thers wers no borrowings outstanding under sutch agreements and cash and cash equivalents and long-term investments totaled $48 million and
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$60 million, respectively. Cash flows generated from operating activities increased to $117 million in 1995 from $86 million and $76 milkon in 1994 and 1993,
respectively. The Company continues to actively monitor receivables with emphasis placed on callection activities and the negotlatmn of more favorahle paymerit
terms. As a result, average Teceivable days outstanding decreased to 63 in 1995 from 64 in 1934

Cash flows spent on investing activities increased to $120 million in 1995 compared © $47 miliion ang $37 milliens in 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Expenditures for the acquisition of buginesses were $71 million in 1995 compared to $14 millior in 1994 and $18 million in 1993. Agguisitions of businesses in
1935 were pnmanly made to complement the Company's capabulmes in the areas of fransportation, environment, heatth and energy. Additional acqmsmons were
also made in the National Security business area 1o improve thei)ompanys capabilities in areas in which the Company expects ‘continued DOD funding. The
Company expects to continue to acquire businesses for these and other purposas in the future. Capital expendlques excluding tand and buildings, were $20.million
in 1995 and $18 million in 1994 and 1993 and are expscted to be approximately $28 miliion for 1996, -Expenditures for land and buildings were $15 miliion,
$9 million and $2 million in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectvely, and are expected ta be approximately $7 million for 1996, )

The Company used $22 million for financing activities in 1985 compared to $1 million and$24 million in 1994 and 1993, respectively. in 1995, funds were
wtilized primarity far common stock repurchases and retirement of outstanding debt associated with businesses acquired in 1995. The 1995 increase in utitization

-of funds from 19934 was primarily due to a reduction in sales of the Company's commen stock. The 1994 decrease in utilization of funds from. 1993 was primarily
due to increased sales of the Company's common stock and decreased borrowing activity. | ’

Subsequent to January 31, 1995, the Company increased its borrowing capacity by replacing its credit/term loan agresments with new unsecured credt -
agreements with threg banks totating $105 million, which allow bomowings on a.revolving basis until March 31, 2000. The Company’s cash flows from operations
plus borrowing capacity are expected o provide sufficient funds for the Company's pperatlpns busmess acquisitions, comman steck repurcnases capital
expendutures and future long-term deht requirements,

[

Efjects of Inflation

The ma]pnty of the Company's cpntracts are cost-reimbursement tvpe contracts or are completed within one year. As a result, the Company has been abla o
aﬂtlmpate ingreases in costs when pricing #ts contracts. Bids for longar term fixéd-price and T&M type contracts typically include labor and other cost escatations in
ampunts 2xpected o be sufficient to cover cost increases over, the period of performance Consequently, because costs and revenues include an inflaiicnary
increase commensarate with the gene:al econormy, net income, as & percentage of Tevenues, has not bgen sngmﬁcantly 1mpacted by inflation.

Other Stockholder information

Stock Information : : -

The following tabie sets forth information concemlng the stock price for Class A Comman Stock, and the applicable price for the Ctass B Comman Stock for

the periods beginning on the dates indicated: .

Price per share of- Price per share of

Date ' . : - T ' Class A Common Stock Class B-Common Stock
April ©,1993 .. L L. e e e © 51263 T $63.15

July 9, 1893 .. .. .. P P AN $1285 - 56425
- October 8, 1993 .. ... ... .. P $13.12 $65.60 -
January 14, 1998 . . e $14.19 - $7095
WO O, 1894 . e . $14.46 S 7230

July 91894 L. ce P e . $14.48 i $72.40
October 15,1894 .. .. ... ..o . AP L $15.07. $7535 _ .
JANUATY 14, 1095 . o e e T . 815,72 ‘ $78.60

AT 14, 1905 . L e e 1641 ) $82.05

There is no general public marke for the Cpmpanys COMmon stoﬂk A limited secondary market for the Company's common stock has been implemented
through a wholly- owned subsidiary registered as a broker-deaker The Company's Soard of Directors determines the sfock price wiih the assistance of an =~
independent apprauser and the use of a formula, which mcludes a market factor that reflects relevant outside securities market conditians. Existing stockholders
- may sell stock at the then current stock price to employees, consuitants or directors who fiave been approved by the Board of Direciors of the Company to purchase
an equity interest in the Company. The tiustees of the Company's Employes Stock Ownersh!p Plan, Prafit Sharing Renrement Pian, Cash or Deferred Arrangement,
and Employee Stock Purchase Plan may also purchase shares for their respective tusts in the fimiied market. At January 31, 1995, there were apprmumately
10, ?00 stockholders of record, ’ ‘

~

: Armual ‘Meeting
The annual meeting of the stockholders of Geience Applications international Cprporatmn wm be held on Juty14,1995 in the Grand Ballraom of the an -
Carlton Hotel, 1700 Tysons Blvd., McLean, Vlrgm:a Notice of the meeting and proxy statement will be maled 10 stockholders in advance of the meeting.
The Company's Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 1995, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commssmn contains additional
informatiof: about the Company and is available free of charge to the Company's stockialders. Please direct requests to the attention of the Corporate Secretary,
Scmce Applications Intermational Corppratmn 10260 Campus Point Driver San Ciego, California 92121. Telephpne {619) 935-7323.
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The Uranium Exchange Company

1996 Product List

The Ux Weekly

Ux Market Reports

Fabrication

Ux Special Reports

For 10 years The Uranium Exchange Company (Ux) has been
publishing one of the industry’s best known newsletters, The Ux
Weekly. This widely read newsletter is published every Monday, 51
weeks a year. It contains thought-provoking commentary, in-depth
analytical discussions and reports of current news events, and tracks
market activity and market price indicators. The Ux Weekly is avail-
able by fax and/or mail and soon via the Internet.

As part of Ux’s consulting services, Market Qutlook reports are pre-
pared covering the entire front end of the nuclear fuel supply. These
reports and Ux’s Price Indicator System are discussed below:

The quarterly Uranium Market Outlook report reviews recent activities in
the spot and long-term uranium markets, analyzes the outlook for the up-
coming quarter, and discusses potential price movements in the near- and
long-term markets. This report also includes three sets of market price
indicators that are designed to signal future price changes and monthly
updates that analyze market developments.

The quarterly Enrichment Market Outlook reviews recent activities in the
spot and long-term enrichment market developments, analyzes the uncov-
ered SWU positions and contracting activities of western utilities and dis-
cusses potential future price developments. This report includes two sets
of market price indicators that are designed to alert market players of
changing conditions that could affect the spot and long-term enrichment
markets and a monthly update that reviews market developments.

‘The annual Conversion Market Outlook report reviews conversion supply
and demand fundamentals, discusses recent and possible future develop-
ments affecting the market and analyzes potential future price develop-
ments. This report also includes a set of indicators, updated monthly, de-
signed to measure the price outlook over the following year.

The annual Fabrication Market Qutlook report reviews the status of utility
fabrication contracts by reactor, discusses present market conditions and
analyzes potential future price developments.

Ux also offers a number of special products that include special one-
time, in-depth studies on a particular issue (The Evolving EUP
Market and Nuclear Power Development in Asia), monthly re-
ports on subjects in which there is particular interest and projects
that involve models and databases that are maintained on a joint
venture basis (U-PRICE and Nuclear Supply Analysis Reports).

P.O. Box 1836 * Danbury, Connecticut 06812 + Phone: (203) 746-5021 + Fax: (203} 746-3978



The Ux Consulting Company, LLC

Company Background

As an affiliate of The Uranium Exchange Company (Ux), The Ux Consulting Company (UxC)
was founded in March, 1994, in order to extend and provide greater focus to Ux’s consulting ca-
pabilities. In this capacity, UxC was set up to help companies address new market challenges, as
well as to contribute 1o Ux’s standard consulting reports. Over the past year and a half, UxC has
produced strategic studies for firms active in the uranium and enrichment markets, and has also
prepared a number of smaller commissioned studies dealing with a variety of subjects.

Examples of projects that UxC has delivered over the past year and a half:

o A comprehensive analysis of the uranium market over the next twenty years.

e A detailed study of market opportunities in the enrichment industry.

e An ongoing examination of HEU developments and their potential market impact.
* An analysis of the effect of changing trade restrictions on nuclear fuel markets.

e A monthly monitoring report on enrichment market activity.

e A database/model on uranium inventories, including HEU and tails material.

o A comprehensive study on the evolving EUP market and its implications.

Since its inception, UxC has been involved in a venture with Science Applications International
Corporation (SAIC) to jointly market and support the U-PRICE model developed by SAIC. U-
PRICE is a dynamic computer forecasting model of the uranium market, and is programmed on
Microsoft Excel® for Windows for ease of use. The U-PRICE model provides projections of
uranium prices, production, and inventories based on assumptions input by the user. Because it
incorporates such market factors as trade restrictions on CIS uranium, availability of uranium
from HEU supplies, exchange rates, and inventory use, U-PRICE has the ability to simulate a
wide variety of market scenarios. Over the past year and a half, U-PRICE has been used by a
number of organizations, including the U.S. Department of Energy, to examine various market
issues.

Recently, UxC has entered a teaming relationship with International Nuclear, Inc. (iNi) to pro-
duce a series of reports on all facets of nuclear fuel supply. These reports, part of the Nuclear
Supply Analysis (NSA) system, include detailed data and information on individual producers as
part of the NSA Encyclopedia, and summary data on all producers as part of the NSA Over-
view. Both the NSA Encyclopedia and Overview are supplemented by NSA Topical Reports,
which are published throughout the year to update key production developments.

Through the teaming arrangements with SAIC and iNi, as well as its affiliation with Ux, UxC is
poised to provide the most complete consulting and information services in the industry, backed
up by industry experience, strong analytical skills, and comprehensive data.

P.O. Box 71627 * Marietta, Georgia 30007 - Phone: (770) 640-8528 +« Fax: (770) 641-9736
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Unless we change our direction, we are
most likely to end up where we are headed

— Chinese Proverb

Introduction

With uranium prices now having risen by more than 70% over the past year
and a half, most buyers are asking themselves how high will the market go and
will these higher prices be sustainable. Part of the answer may come from
looking at why the market is moving higher now to begin with. At the same
time the uranium market is commanding most, if not all, of the attention,
utilities continue asking what the future for enrichment will be as well now
that the SWU market appears to be a lot more stable.

Looking into the future, though, the current volatility in the uranium market
may give way to a period of long-term stability while the current apparent
stability in the enrichment market may end with a turn toward a far more
competitive environment for the primary sellers.

The Uranium Market

The journey of the uranium market since 1980 has seemed to be an unending
maze of major market events. The large wave of reactor cancellations in the
early 1980s was followed by Chernobyl, a 50% contraction in western
production, the discovery of Canada’s Cigar Lake, the miners’ lawsuit against
DOE and a trip to the Supreme Court, the beginning of Chinese sales to the
west, the wave of material from the USSR, the breakup of the USSR, the
antidumping suit, Euratom’s CIS restrictions, the onset of the age of swords to
plowshares and the ups and downs of HEU.

Through all this time, the market was driven more by inventory liquidations
that resulted from the vast supply/demand imbalance than by the cost of new
production. As each event unfolded, the drive to reduce or liquidate excess
inventories increased with a resulting new downward pressure on spot prices.

-1-
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During this dizzying course of events, the spot U3Og price fell 85% from
January 1980, when it was $40/1b U;Qg, until the ultimate bottom of less than
$7/1b was reached nearly 12 years later. Of course there were some mini price
booms along the way, notably those in 1982-83, 1985 and 1990. After 1990,
though, price movements became more complicated by the development of a
two-tiered market that was brought about by the imposition of U.S. and
Euratom restrictions on CIS material.

Looking back at the market over the past 16 years and trying to put all of the
events and price movements into perspective yields what may be characterized
as three megatrends in the market’s development. Each of these trends not
only impacted the market as it was occurring, their impact continues today and
will have a bearing on the market here forward.

The first megatrend was the western industry consolidation that was needed to
bring supply, demand and inventories into balance. As this was about to be
completed in the late 1980s, the breakdown of the wall between the east and
west created a situation where the market had to absorb excess supplies
brought about by the integration of eastern supplies into the western market.
And if the two waves of consolidation/integration were not enough, the market
then faced the challenge presented by the integration of commercial and
military markets on a world basis.

Western Consolidation

1980-1994

By 1980, a wave of reactor cancellations had begun in response to the
worldwide move toward energy conservation brought about by the second oil
crisis. At the same time, the Three Mile Island accident took its toll on the
industry as well. What made the carly 1980s particularly hard on uranium
producers was the complete imbalance between supply and demand (Figure 1)
that dominated the commercial market which had begun only ten years before.

.o, The Uranium Market
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Figure 1. Western Production vs. Reactor Requirements, 1970 to 1995
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By 1985 demand finally caught up with production. However, the large
buildup in commercial inventories that had been generated from the 1970s
oversupply and which peaked at nearly 600-million Ibs U3Og or six years of
annual demand at that time (Figure 2), dominated the industry through the rest
of 1980s and into the early 1990s.

Figure 2. Western inventory Balance vs. Desired Inventory Level at $10/lb U;0;
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The strong drive to consume or sell excess inventories made the cost of
production a margina! factor in price development during this period. This
first reached an extreme in 1982-83 when utilities looking to liquidate excess

The Uranium Market -3-
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stocks became the largest spot selling group while producers became the
largest buyers as they elected to shut down production and cover their
commitments by making market purchases at prices below production costs.

As demand rose and production fell, inventories began dropping rapidly and a
perception persisted that the market turnaround was only two years away.
Given the rapid pace of inventory use, as depicted in Figure 2, the 1989 Ux
price forecast, as shown in Figure 3, represents what was then considered
within the norm.

Figure 3. Ux 1989 Uranium Price Forecast
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If the next two waves of material had not been introduced to the market, it
would only have been a question of time until these expectations were
realized. Certainly by the early 1990s, spot prices would have needed to move
back to the $20 to $30/1b range in order for supply to meet demand.

On the other hand, without the threat of eastern supplies, the western
consolidation may have been more protracted than it was in reality. This
phase ended with the final capitulation of the more than 10-million Jbs U3Oge
inventory sold into the market in 1994. By then, western production had
fallen to 55-million Ibs U30s, or less than half of western demand, while the
number of producers fell dramatically.

-4 - The Uranium Market
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East/West integration

1989-1995

The first half of 1989 marked the time when the outlook for the future began
changing rapidly. It became generally known at this time that the Russians
were starting to offer feed material to their western enrichment customers.
With China having already begun making some sales, the activities of the two
suppliers marked the beginning of the integration of excess eastern production
and inventory into the western markets.

This second wave of consolidation/integration for the western market was
intensified by two factors. First, unlike the first consolidation wave, eastern
supplies climbed rapidly and were forced mostly onto the spot market. While
there were virtually no eastern imports to the west prior to 1989, there was as
much as 30-million 1bs U3Oge being imported annually by 1992.

While this alone would have been a major disruption to the market like it was
for nearly every other mineral exported from the USSR during that time, the
integration of these supplies was made worse by the dominant use of traders in
its disposition. With producers building an antidumping wall against the flow
of USSR/CIS material westward, traders were left as the only conduit for such
sales. For their part, traders sold CIS supplies on the spot market while for
their own accounts they entered into long-term guaranteed price contracts that
were enhanced as spot prices weakened under the weight of eastern supplies.

The funneling of CIS supplies into the spot market at the virtual exclusion of
long-term contract sales to utilities may have created a greater weakness in
spot price than might have been the case otherwise. Had eastern supplies been
absorbed at higher rates under long-term sales, a case might be made that spot
prices may not have fallen as far and the antidumping actions may not have
been as drastic.

Even more than the double-digit price rise for restricted prices last year, the
43% gain for unrestricted prices in 1995 was a sign that the east/west
production integration phase may have ended. This is based on the fact that
most of the production from Kazakhstan, Russia and Uzbekistan is now
committed for sale through long-term contracts to the west with the remainder
going to eager buyers on the spot market. The integration process has been
greatly enhanced by the decline in production from these republics where
output has dropped from roughly 21-million Ibs U3Osg in 1991-92 to possibly
15-million 1bs UsOg or less in 1995.

The Uranium Market
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It appears that CIS production will continue to decline, possibly to less than
10-million 1bs U3Oj per year over the next several years. Even with the price
rebound, production from these mostly low grade, rising cost resources is not
expected to turn around anytime soon. As such, the integration of eastern
production into the western market appears now to be complete.

Commercial/Military Integration

1992-?

With the first two megatrends completed, the market’s future development
hinges largely on the outcome of what is believed to be the third and last
major phase of the 1980-to-present bear market in uranjum. This is the
integration of military inventories into the commercial market.

Throughout the HEU discovery process, quantity and timing estimates have
risen and fallen as the various technical, legal, economic, political and market
considerations change. It now appears that Russian HEU and other U.S. and
Russian government supplies might contribute only 15- to 20-million Ibs
U1Oge per year to the market over the rest of the decade, if not Jonger. This is
down from expectations the market held through most of last year that
supplies might rise as high as 25- to 30-million Ibs UzOse per year by the year
2000.

The end of western inventory consumption and the full integration of eastern
production supplies into the western market means that western production
may have to rise from last year’s level of 69-million Ibs UzOg up to 90- to
110-million 1bs U3Os by the turn of the century. Given the cost of bringing on
this production, a need of close to 90-million lbs U0z would be expected to
require at least $15/1b while a need closer to 110-million Ihs UsOg might
require prices closer to $20/b.

The main variable in need between the two cases will be the level of HEU that
eventually flows to the market. Should these supplies be available to the
market at the rate of 15- to 20-million lbs UsOg, western production will need
to rise to the upper end of the range. But should HEU sales rise to the 30-
million Ibs U;Oge level by the end of the decade, production may not have to
rise much above the 90-million Ibs mark.

Of course, one other possibility is that HEU will come to the market at a rate
that is less than what is now expected. This lower rate or a boost in demand
for whatever reason could require production to rise to much higher levels and

The Uranium Market



Here's Looking At U (and SWU}

much more rapidly. This would touch off a much more pronounced price
spike over the next two years than might otherwise be the case.

Given the still uncertain availability of military supplies, the end date of the
commercial/military integration phase remains a question mark. It is possible
that, if what we now expect in the way of HEU deliveries becomes reality, we
may already have completed the final phase of integration. On the other hand,
should HEU and other government supplies increase substantially over the
next few years, this phase of integration may continue for a few more years.

Uranium Market Outiook

Tt is our belief that the 1995-96 rise in spot market prices is part of the upward
adjustment phase that is needed in order for supply to meet demand in the
future following the three phases of consolidation/integration discussed above.
While a rise into the $15 -$20/Ib range should be high enough to meet
producers’ needs, the volatility that usually accompanies a period of major
readjustment leaves the market vulnerable to yet another boom/bust cycle that
could see prices rise substantially higher during this process which could last
another year or two.

In retrospect, the conclusion of the three waves of consolidation/integration
should prove extraordinary and unique events in the history of the uranium
market, a history that started only about 25 years ago.

The severe imbalances in the market were the result of its relative immaturity
which is a development that a market can go through only once. While all
markets are subject to boom/bust cycles, these moves do not normally last as
long nor de the imbalances become as great as they did in uranivm. Along
with great imbalances come traders who can easily take advantage of suppliers
and buyers and who are more prone to protect their own interests than to drive
markets to the extreme along a path of least resistance. The uranium market,
unlike most other markets, also suffered major interference from government
entities and policies that exacerbated its developmental problems.

While the final transition from an inventory driven market to a production
driven one may once again result in a boor/bust cycle, it is highly probable
that the uranium market at the conclusion of that transition will be far less
volatile and devoid of the strong trader dominance that has prevailed for most
of the past ten years.

Uranium Market Qutlook
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The SWU Market

While uranium may end its current phase of volatility with a long period of
stability, the enrichment market by its nature may give way to a far more
competitive environment in the future should the market’s currently high
entrance barriers begin eroding. Major events that could impact the market
are changes in the government’s influence on the market, either through
ownership or import restrictions, the shift in technology from higher cost GDP
product to lower cost centrifuge or laser production and changes in how the
market itself functions.

Government Influences

The main government factor impacting the enrichment market is the current
restriction on Russian SWUs imports into Europe and the U.S. and the defacto
restriction on imports into Japan.

Obviously, an important question is whether the Department of Commerce
and Euratom will eliminate all restrictions on the sale of Russian SWUs. The
export of up to 10-million Russian SWUs per year to the west at what could
be substantially lower prices would certainly change the enrichment market
quickly. A battle among western enrichers to retain market share and an effort
by the Russians to increase market share would be played out through prices,
flexibilities and delivery options and shorter term contracts among other
things.

Given uraniurn as the basis for the current restrictions, enrichment restrictions
could end as those on uranium are phased out. Alternately, the Russians could
be granted a quota for SWUs for some reason. In any case, at some point the
restrictions will end and Russian SWUs will come to the market so long as
their centrifuges continue operating satisfactorily.

The other government influence is the government’s ownership position of the
enrichment industry itself. With government ownership comes the ability to
influence trade policies, to sidestep antitrust issues, to pressure certain buyers
into purchasing from certain suppliers, to keep regulators from forcing high
cost plant improvements, to influence the disposal of government inventories
and possibly to interfere with the development of competitors in any one
enricher’s backyard. Notice that each country with an enrichment plant so far
has had only one local supplier.

This could change to some degree, though, if USEC privatizes and LES 1s
successful in entering the industry.

The SWU Market
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A change in the ownership of USEC would likely have important implications
for the market. For example:

« Will the Commerce Department feel compelled or pressured to give a
private USEC the same protection under trade Jaws?

 Will entry by LES be more difficult or easier if USEC is privatized?

« Will the U.S. government be less inclined to allow USEC to be the sole
purveyor of its inventories and Russian HEU?

 Will customers in certain countries feel less pressured into buying from
USEC leading to a drop in USEC’s non-U.S. market share?

» How would investment in advanced technologies, including AVLIS, be
affected if USEC is privatized?

e Would USEC shut down one of its gaseous diffusion plants?

e Would a privatized USEC elect to market and price its SWUs differently
than it does now?

e Will a private USEC be more likely to sell EUP either by enriching tails or
integrating into uranium production and conversion?

Consideration of these questions is of special importance to future
developments in the enrichment market. They are also important to potential
investors in USEC, other enrichers, uraniom producers and convertors.
Depending on how, when and if USEC is privatized, the end results can
certainly lead to substantial changes in the market itself.

The Technical Aspects

Almost 70% of the world’s enrichment capacity is based on the higher cost
gaseous diffusion technology and the remainder on the lower cost centrifuge
technology. All of the world’s enrichers, including the few smaller ones, are
pursuing advanced centrifuges as well as laser enrichment as a means of
maintaining or achieving a cost edge. For now, access to enrichment
technology and the high initial investment cost represents an entry barrier into
the enrichment business.

But once the newer technologies are successfully deployed, the current
enrichment suppliers face challenges on two fronts. First, existing suppliers
who have access to the newer technologies could gain a cost advantage and
thus a competitive advantage as well. But if they use the market’s
oligopolistic nature to maintain higher prices, the entrance barrier to others
who also might successfully develop lower cost technologies will be lowered.

The SWU Market



Here's Looking At U {(and SWU) March 1996

Thus, existing enrichers will be forced not only to stay competitive with other
current suppliers but to keep new suppliers from entering the market.

Given the promise of new, lower cost technology, the market’s upside
potential appears limited. An important consideration will also be a change in
the cost makeup of these supplies. The GDPs have a high operating cost that
is close to their total cost given their mostly depreciated assets while
centrifuges carry a high total cost but minimal operating cost. Once a
centrifuge comes on line, though, the GDPs simply cannot compete. A shift in
the industry’s cost makeup will occur as the shift from GDP dependence to
lower cost technologies unfolds. While this could Jead to a more volatile

market during the transition, the cost to utilities in the end could be sharply
reduced.

The Market ltself

With the elimination of secondary supply sources, the enrichment market over
the past two years has reverted almost exclusively to a long-term contract
market. Unlike contracts of the past, though, the long-term commitments
being made this time around have tended to be for roughly five years rather
than ten. As shown in Figure 4, uncovered SWU requirements rise sharply
starting about five years out.

Figure 4. U.S. and Non-U.S. Uncovered SWU Requirements
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Given these market conditions, a supplier attempting to enter the market or
increase market share is plumb out of luck for the next several years unless it
can buy its way into the market through one of the other suppliers. This is just
what Russia is doing via matched SWU sales and the sale of Russian HEU to
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USEC. Thus, the removal of restrictions on Russian SWU imports, for
instance, is unlikely to have much of an immediate influence on the market.
The same would be true of a new supplier such as LES.

But a privatized USEC, a determined LES, a new supplier trying to break into
the market, an unrestricted Russian enrichment industry, a new entity with
access to U.S. or Russian HEU or an aggressive lower cost supplier could
casily change the dynamics of the enrichment market. Added to this, the
utility industry anticipating potential changes to the enrichment market in its
favor may push enrichers into even shorter-term contracts and thus open up
the market to more competition in the future.

SWU Market Outlook

The enrichment market faces a lot more uncertainties than the uranium market
in the future. Based on the foregoing, it is unlikely that SWU prices will
increase. Most certainly, an unbridled rise in SWU prices by overt or covert
operation of the oligopoly is not a realistic scenario.

It is more likely that prices will be pressured downward with advances in
enrichment technology, with the removal of trade barriers, with the
privatization of USEC and with new enrichers attempting to enter the market.

SWU Market Outiook
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